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Ronson Europe N.V.
LETTER FROM THE CEO

To our shareholders

2010 was characterised by mixed trends in the ¢lebanomy. With the lingering effects of the 20@8ahcial crisis still
impacting many countries around the world, the $fbokconomy continued to generate growth and dtabiii 2010, the
Polish economy grew by 3.4%, while unemploymenttiooied to remain stable at approximately 11%, witéiny of the
larger Polish cities showing rates under 10%. TolessR economy is expected to grow by another 4Z0ihl.

During the year, the residential market in Polahoveed signs of improvement, both on the demandtlamdupply sides.
In 2010 construction began on 158,000 new unif8dtand, which is lower by only 10% compared to liighest number
observed in 2008.

The Company succeeded to achieve the majorityeofittals it had set for itself during 2010, inclugdin

- commencement of seven projects / stages (Nauticadiginarium Ill, Impressio I, Naturalis I+11, Véis |, Sakura
| and Mozart I),

- commencement of operations in two new cities (Wawcknd Szczecin), adding to the Company’s existing
presence in Warsaw and Po@tha

- implementation of internal control systems, whichl wosition the Company for significant expansiof its
activity, and

- further strengthening of Ronson’s brand name imtheketplace.

During 2010, the Company sold 270 units with altetdue of PLN 173.3 million while in 2009 the Coamny sold 263
units with the total value of PLN 142.3 million. &tprofit for 2010 amounted to PLN 35.1 million whicompares
favourably to 2009 when it amounted to PLN 21.dionil

We continue to strongly believe that in the medamd long term, the residential Polish market hojdst promise. Over 4
million new units will need to be built in orderrf@oland to reach the EU27 average number of peits ,000 inhabitants.
With current annual production topping out at apprately 160,000 units (which has been even furtieeluced in the
current market environment), the long-term shortageae residential market will remain pronounced should continue
to create great residential development opporesiti

We believe the Company is in an advantageous paositi exploit the current market conditions. Themany currently
enjoys the following advantages:

- astrong capital structure allowing the Companstést and finance new projects,
- apipeline of projects at attractive locations,

- ahighly professional staff, and

- aknown brand in Warsaw and an emerging brandhard®olish cities.

The advantages mentioned above should give the &uwyngthe opportunity to significantly expand the lscaf its
operations and sales, and ultimately to rank amahgdargest residential development companiéxoland.

We wish to thank all of our shareholders for thegintinued support and confidence in our abilitgaory out our corporate
vision.

Sincerely,

Shraga Weisman
CEO
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Ronson Europe N.V.
Supervisory Board Report

Supervisory Board report

We take pleasure in presenting the Financial Stamésnof Ronson Europe N.V. for the financial ye@t@ accompanied
by the report of the management board. Ernst & ‘goiocountants LLP have audited the Financial Statemand issued
an unqualified Auditor's Report. We recommend thersholders to adopt the Financial Statementsesepted.

We concur with the Management Board’s proposala&ert up on page 99 to allocate the net profit figr year 2010
amounting to PLN 35,091 thousand to retained egsnin

Supervision

During 2010, there were frequent Supervisory Baand Management Board meetings, during which, anughers, the
following topics were discussed:

o the Company’s business strategy, including theaiesps by the Company to the changed market enve@onas a
result of the financial crisis;

the strengthening of the Company’s financial positi

potential sources of long term capital;

performance review of the Management Board anduatiah of the Company’s remuneration policy;

the corporate governance structure of the Company;

risk management and processes undertaken during#ng

group restructuring anticipating Polish tax regolas;

evaluation and re-appointment of the Company’statsland;

financial results and other related issues.

The Supervisory Board (including its committees)t raght times (including five meetings of the Audibmmittee)
without the presence of the Management Board toudss among other things, the functioning of thenddgement Board.
The Board also met with the external auditors withthe presence of the Management Board. All Supery Board
meetings held in 2010 were attended by the majofithe members of the Supervisory Board. Nondefrhembers of the
Supervisory Board has been absent during morecharsupervisory Board meeting in 2010.

Audit Committee

The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Comesttare to supervise, monitor and advise the ManageBoard and
Supervisory Board on all matters related to rislnagement, audit, control and compliance to relefiaahcial legislation
and regulations. The Audit Committee evaluatespdwdormance of external auditors and related c@sing 2010, the
Audit Committee met five times. The Audit Committeas also been involved in the process of the sissrg of the
performance and costs of the external auditordy witom the committee met twice during the year.

Remuneration and Nominating Committee

It is the primary task of the Remuneration and Nwmating Committee to: (i) propose to the Supervis@wgard
remuneration of the members of the Management Boaauding a review and monitoring of the Groupttal
remuneration policy, (ii) advise the SupervisoryaBb on matters relating to the nominations of b&tlpervisory and
Management Board members. The Remuneration and nédimg Committee regularly reviews the SupervisBoard
profile, its effectiveness and composition. The otttee also reviews the performance of the membgktise Management
Board. During 2010, the Remuneration and Nomina@ingimittee met once during the year.

Financial statements

The Management Board has prepared the 2010 firlas@éements. These financial statements were skscl at a
Supervisory Board meeting attended by the auditors.



Ronson Europe N.V.
Supervisory Board Report

Change in composition of the Supervisory Board

In order to secure continuity within the Board, tBapervisory Board has adopted an arrangementptioaides for a
staggered expiration of individuals terms. Undés girangement, the reappointment for a four-yean tof one member of
the Supervisory Board was scheduled prematurelyhdrAnnual General Meeting of Shareholders hel® @pril 2010.
During this General Meeting of Shareholders, MrDdri has been reappointed as Supervisory Diredtdhe Company.
His new term will expire in April 2014. For the upuing General Meeting of Shareholders, the reappant of Messrs
Segall and Shilhav will be scheduled.

Change in composition of the Management Board
During 2010, there have been no changes in the asitign of the Management Board of the Companyh\iview to the

expiration of their four year term as Managing Dices in 2011, the reappointment of Messrs Katz \Atadtsch, which is
recommended by the Supervisory Board, will be solegtifor the upcoming General Meeting of Sharehslde

8 March 2011
For the Supervisory Board

Uri Dori,
Chairman



Ronson Europe N.V.
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Governance structure

The Company is a Dutch public company with a Igtim the Warsaw Stock Exchange (‘WSE'). For thasom the
Company is subject to both Dutch and Polish rutesragulations regarding corporate governance.

Corporate Governance Code in the Netherlands

On 9 December 2003, the Dutch Corporate Govern@aremittee released the Dutch Corporate Governaonde. At
was updated on 10 December 2008 by the Corporater@ance Code Monitoring Committee to take effextoh
financial year 2009. The updated Dutch Corporatge@mnce Code (‘the Code’) contains principles beskt practice
provisions for management boards, supervisory lspaidareholders and general meetings of sharekplfieancial
reporting, auditors, disclosure, compliance andafment standards.

Dutch companies listed on a government-recognizedksexchange, either in the Netherlands or elsesyhare
required under Dutch law to disclose in their ameports whether or not they apply the provisiohthe Code and, if
they do not apply, to explain the reasons why. CThee provides that if a company's general meetfrghareholders
explicitly approves the corporate governance stingcnd policy and endorses the explanation fordawation from
the best practice provisions, such company wilbemed to have complied with the Code.

The Company acknowledges the importance of goopotate governance. The Management and SupervisoaydB
have reviewed the Code, and generally agree vsétiputport. The Boards have taken and will take famther steps
they consider required and appropriate to furthgriément the Code and improve the Company’s cotp@avernance
features. This is very much a living process. ltthe Company’s policy to discuss the topic annualith the

shareholders and schedule it for this purposefferannual general meeting of shareholders eachciielayear. The
topic has been part of the agenda for each gemerating of shareholders since 2008.

The corporate governance policy and the corporatergance framework of the Company were approvethio first
time by the shareholders in 2007 at the occasioth@fPO of the Company. The topic of corporateegnance has
been scheduled for each general meeting of shatetsosince 2007.

Exceptions to the application of the Dutch CorpoeaGovernance Code:

The Company endorses the Code and has appliedetheant best practice provisions of the Dutch Coafmo
Governance Code, except for the provisions sebelatw.

II.1.1 A Management Board member is appointed for a maxiiperiod of four years. A member may be reappointed
for a term not more than four years at a time.

Members of the Management Board that were appoimtéare the end of the financial year 2007, haxenkappointed
for an unlimited period and the Company does nositter it appropriate to renegotiate the existiggeaments, in so
far as this would be possible given the mandatooyipions of Dutch labour law. Any appointmentsnoémbers of the
Management Board after 1 January 2008 have besmmipliance with this provision.

II.2.4 If options are granted, they shall, in any everif be exercised in the first three years after tiade of
granting. The number of options to be granted shealldependent on the achievement of challengirgetarspecified
beforehand.

The currently outstanding options have been grantembnditionally and independent on the achievenoénargets.
The Company shall not amend these existing agresméonsidering that the Company is still in a tiekdy early
stage of development and that the setting of cheditedetermined performance criteria at a terrmatdéast three years
is not practical at this stage, the Company stalapply this provision.



Ronson Europe N.V.
Corporate Governance

Governance structure (cont'd)

lll. 2.1 The supervisory board members, with the exceptiorobmore than one person, shall be independetirwi
the meaning of best practice provision Ill. 2.2.

Our Supervisory Board currently consists of fivenmbers, of which two are independent within the negmof the

Dutch Corporate Governance Code. GE (15.3% shatiigdland ITR Dori (64.2% shareholding) have agreedse

their voting rights in such a manner to procurd tfi& Dori will be in a position to nominate indemient supervisory
directors to the Company. Moreover, the Companitislas of association state that the Supervisaoprd shall have
at least two independent Supervisory Board dirsctor

lll. 6.5 The terms of reference of the supervisory boardl slwatain rules on dealing with conflicts of inést and
potential conflicts of interest between managentsard members, supervisory board members and thernek
auditor on the one hand and the company on therofftee terms of reference shall also stipulate Whiansactions
require the approval of the supervisory board. Toenpany shall draw up regulations governing ownigrsif and
transactions in securities by management or superyiboard members, other than securities issuethéy ‘own’

company.

The Company believes that the restrictions unddcitDeecurities law are sufficient to govern the ewghip of, and
transactions in, securities by Supervisory and Mangent Board members. Implementing additional ict&tns would

potentially harm its ability to attract and ensthie continued services of Supervisory and Managée®eard members
and the Company therefore believes that applyirsgltst practice provision is not in its best iagtr

IV. 3.1 Meetings with analysts, presentations to analygtssentations to investors and institutional ineestand
press conferences shall be announced in advandbeonompany’s website and by means of press redeBsevision
shall be made for all shareholders to follow theseetings and presentations in real time, for exanyyl means of web
casting or telephone lines. After the meetingspiiesentations shall be posted on the company'siteeb

Considering the Company’s size, it would createrressive burden to provide facilities which enadtiareholders to
follow in real time the meetings and presentatiteferred to in the best practice provision. The @any will ensure
that presentations are posted on its website immtegliafter the meetings in question.

Transactions with a conflict of interest

During the financial year 2010, no transactionsedsrred to in best-practice provisions 11.3.4,818 and 111.6.4 took
place involving a conflict of interest relating directors, supervisory board members or naturalaridgal persons
holding at least 10% of the shares in the compApplying best-practice provisions 11.3.2, 11.3.8,.6.1 and 111.6.2 was
therefore not relevant.

Notwithstanding the above, during the year ended8tember 2010, the Group has sold 3 residentitd including

parking places and storages (“Units”) to Mr Andr@&jtowski and, Mr Tomasz tafski and Mr Karol Pilniewicz for a
total net amount (excluding VAT) PLN 424 thousaRN 467 thousand and PLN 429 thousand, respectiVélgse
transactions were executed at arm’s length and \weseherence to the Group’s policy in respect edated-party
transactions.
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Corporate Governance

Governance structure (cont'd)

Statement referred to in Section 3 of the Decreel6fDecember 2009, Stb 545, determining the furthequirements
concerning the contents of annual reports

Based on Section 391 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civad€ (Act of 9 July 2004, Stb 370, to amend Book@) and the
Royal Decree of 23 December 2004, limited liabilitympanies, whose shares — to put it briefly —lmsted on a
regulated stock exchange, must include a statemethieir annual reports about their compliance wité principles
and best practices of the Code.

In light of the foregoing the Company confirms tirathe year under review, it did not comply fullyth the provisions
of the Code, nor does it intend to comply with theliring the current financial year or the nexaficial year. Its
reasons for doing so are explained in the paragrapbve.

Corporate Governance Code in Poland

The Code of Best Practice for WSE-Listed Compalfties ‘WSE Corporate Governance Rules’) appliescimganies
listed on the WSE, irrespective of whether such games are incorporated in Poland or outside o&itbl The WSE
Corporate Governance Rules consist of general remations relating to best practices for listechganies (Part 1)
and best practice provisions relating to managerbeatds, supervisory board members and sharehdEarss Il to
V).

The WSE Corporate Governance Rules impose upocatmpanies listed on the WSE an obligation to dselio their
current reports continuous or incidental non-coamae with best practice provisions (with the exicepof the rules set
forth in Part ). Moreover, every year each WSEeliscompany is required to publish a detailed state¢ on any non-
compliance with the WSE Corporate Governance R{feduding the rules set forth in Part 1) by way a&tatement
submitted with the company’s annual report (theaif Compliance Statement’).

Companies listed on the WSE are required to jusitfig- or partial compliance with any WSE Corpor@@vernance
Rules and to show the ways of eliminating the pgidsstonsequences of such non-compliance or thes faph
company intends to take to mitigate the risk of-compliance with such rule in future.

The Company intends, to the extent practicableptaply with all principles of the WSE Corporate @avance Rules.
However, certain principles will apply to the Compaonly to the extent permitted by Dutch law. Didiinformation

regarding non-compliance, as well as additionalanattions regarding partial compliance with cerfiBE Corporate
Governance Rules due to incompatibilities with Duaw, are included in the aforementioned reportsich are also
available on the Company’s website (www.ronsorapk) are being published by way of a current report.

The Company makes all efforts to comply with allnpiples of both the Dutch Code and the WSE Congora
Governance Rules and to enforce such corporatetsteuthat ensures the Company’s transparencyetontist possible
extent. The Company believes that its efforts g@reciated by its stakeholders and that theseteffuitl support the
Company’s growth and its reliability.

General Meeting of Shareholders

The annual General Meeting of Shareholders shalidbe within six months after the end of the finahgear to deal
with, among other matters: (i) the annual repaitadoption of the annual accounts, (iii) discassof (any substantial
changes in) corporate governance; (iv) discussioremuneration policy for the Board of Managing é&itors, (v)
granting of discharge to the Board of Managing Etives for the management over the past financiar ye
(vi) discussion of remuneration of Supervisory Bbmembers, (vii) granting of discharge to the Svisery Board for
the supervision over the past financial year, X\piblicy on additions to reserves and dividends) édoption of the
profit appropriation, (x) (re)appointment of membef the Board of Managing Directors and (xi) (paintment of
members of the Board of Supervisory Directors.

Other General Meetings of Shareholders shall bd bsloften as the Management Board or the Supeyvidoard

deems necessary. Shareholders representing irg¢iegate of at least one-tenth of the Companyisei<apital may
request the Management Board or the SupervisorydBtm convene a General Meeting of Shareholdeegingt
specifically the business to be discussed.



Ronson Europe N.V.
Corporate Governance

Issue of new shares

The Company shall only issue shares pursuant tsalution of the General Meeting or of another ocafe body
designated to do so by a resolution of the Gedegting for a fixed period not exceeding five yedrse designation
must be accompanied by a stipulation as to the rummbshares that may be issued. The designatignemeh time be
extended for a period of up to five years. The giesiion may not be cancelled, unless the designatiovides
otherwise. A decision by the General Meeting taésshares or to designate another body to issueshan only be
taken upon the proposal of the Board of Managimg®@ors. The proposal is subject to the approvathefBoard
of Supervisory Directors.

The Board of Managing Directors is, subject to éipproval of the Supervisory Board, authorized &ohee to issue
shares for a certain period that lapses at 9 Oct2dgl for a maximum issue of shares of 25% ofisseed share
capital immediately prior to that issue, with amyeggate maximum of all non-issued shares of thieosizied capital.

Each shareholder shall have a pre-emptive right vespect to any share issue in proportion to gyeemate amount of
his shares, except if shares are issued for a asin-@onsideration or if shares are issued to erapkgf the Group.

As the two leading shareholders — ITR Dori B.V. &M Real Estate CE Residential B.V. — are contrgltespectively
64.2% and 15.3% of the Company’s share capitalates in the General Meeting of Shareholders ofxbmpany, the
change of control over the Company is not possilifleout their consent and involvement. In addititire two leading
shareholders are represented both in the Supey\ismard and in the Management Board of the Company.

Supervisory and management boards

The Company has a two-tier corporate governanagtstie, consisting of an executive Management Bdérd
‘Management Board’) and a non-executive Supervi®wgrd (the ‘Supervisory Board’). The day-to-daynagement
and policy-making of the Company is vested in trenkigement Board, under the supervision of the Sigoey Board.
There are currently six members of the Managemeaird® whose names are set out below. The Supervidoayd
supervises the Management Board and the Compaeyieragl course of affairs and the business it casdutalso
supports the Management Board with advice. In pevifag their duties the Supervisory Board memberstnagt in
accordance with the interests of the Company aadtisiness connected with it.

Supervisory Board

The Articles of Association provide that the Compahall have a Supervisory Board consisting okast three and at
most seven persons of which at least two Supenvifirectors shall be independent. Supervisory Daec are
appointed by the General meeting of shareholdera feeriod of four years. After holding office ftire first period of
four years, Supervisory Directors are eligible fferelection for two additional terms of four yeaach. The General
meeting of shareholders shall establish the renatioerfor each Supervisory Director.

Supervisory Board Committees

The Supervisory Board is supported by two comnittee

e the Audit Committee (comprising Mr Shilhav (chairpaMr Dori and Mr Segall);

e the Remuneration and Nominating Committee (commugisilr Dori (chairman), Mr Segall and Mr Sharoni);
These committees are composed from members of uper@sory Board with relevant experience. All coittees
operate under the overall responsibility of the Sujsory Board, in accordance with the best praditipulations of the
Dutch Corporate Governance Code.
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Composition of the Supervisory Board

Uri Dori (age 68, Israeli citizen, male), Chairman

Uri Dori was appointed a member of the Supervigogrd of the Company on 28 September 2007. Heei€tiairman
of the Management Board and Chief Executive Offitetd Dori Group Ltd. Mr Dori is a board member tbfe
following companies: U. Dori Group Ltd, ACAD Buildg and Investments Ltd, ACAD Equipment and Ass&®¥9)
Ltd, ROM GEVES Casing and Covering (1997) Ltd, maie Ltd, Bay Heart Limited, U. Dori Technologies &
Investments Ltd, Bay Heart Assets (1994) Limitedydoran Engineering Ltd, U Dori Construction Ltd, Itiéin
Initiating and Investments Ltd, Udor Holdings Ltdl,Dori Energy Infrastructure Ltd, U Dori Enterprisktd and Dorad
Energy Ltd. His current term as Supervisory Boaiice@or expires in April 2014. There is no conflict interest
between the Company and other business activitivs @ori.

Mark Segall (age 48, US citizen, male), Vice-Chaam

Mark Segall was appointed a member of the SupanwiBoard of the Company on 28 September 2007. Mabés the
founder of Kidron Corporate Advisors LLC, a corpgeradvisory and mergers and acquisitions boutigidron Capital
Advisors LLC, a US registered broker dealer, aniidfon Opportunity Fund I, LLC, a small privatewgty fund. Prior
to forming Kidron in 2003, he was the Co-chief extaee officer of Investec Inc. Mr Segall serves the board of
directors of Integrated Asset Management plc, Amsweorporation and Temco Services Inc. His curtenin as
Supervisory Director expires in September 2011.ré@he no conflict of interest between the Companyg ather
business activities of Mr Segall.

Frank Roseen (age 48, Sweden citizen, male)

Frank Roseen was appointed a member of the Supgroard of the Company on 29 May 2009. Mr Rosséaned
GE Capital in 2002, and has 9 years of real estaperience. Mr Roseen has been responsible for &#tal Real
Estate’s operations in Central and Eastern Eurimppe ©ctober 2008. His previous role was Managiirgdor - Asset
Management for Asia Pacific. Prior to that, Mr Resevas CFO for GE Commercial Finance Real Estaia Racific
and GE Real Estate Nordic. Before joining GE, hes Wwénance Director for Xerox Nordic. His currentnteas
Supervisory Director expires in May 2013. Therengsconflict of interest between the Company andeiothusiness
activities of Mr Roseen.

Yair Shilhav (age 51, Israeli citizen, male)

Yair Shilhav was appointed a member of the SuperyiBoard on 28 September 2007, and he is the @hairof the
Audit Committee. Since 2004, Mr Shilhav has beendtvner of a business consulting office. Betweeb028nd 2003,
he was a member of the executive directory commitie the audit firm, Somekh Chaikin, a member ofM®.
Between 1995 and 2003, he was the head of the Haifech of Somekh Chaikin, of which he was parfrean 1990 to
2003. Prior to becoming a partner at Somekh Chaliénwas head of the professional and finance tlepat of the
same firm. He was also the head of the accountéamyty at Haifa University between 1998 and 208% current
term as Supervisory Director expires in SeptembBad2There is no conflict of interest between tleenPany and other
business activities of Mr Shilhav.

Reuven Sharoni (age 72, Israeli citizen, male)

Reuven Sharoni was appointed a member of the SispeyvBoard on 23 June 2008. Mr Sharoni’'s recersitipms

include Deputy Manager and head of Non Life Arielurance Company Ltd. from 1980 to 1984. In thes/4884 to
2000, he acted as Deputy General Managing Diresntdrfrom 2000 until 2002 as the General Managingdr of

Arieh Insurance Company Ltd. Since 2003, Mr Shalas been an active chairman of Shirbit Insurarmagzny Ltd.
and since 2006 also a Chairman of Millenium PenSawings Ltd. Mr Sharoni graduated from Hebrew \@rsity

Jerusalem — Middle East Studies, International ifsfaHe also completed his MBA studies at Sehillgriversity in

Paris. His current term as Supervisory Directopims in June 2012. There is no conflict of interdestween the
Company and other business activities of Mr Sharoni
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Management Board

The management of the Company is entrusted to thealjement Board under the supervision of the Sigmew
Board. The Articles of Association provide that Management Board shall consist of two or more rgangadirectors.
Managing directors are appointed by the Generatingef shareholders. The Management Board shadit me often
as a managing director requests a meeting. Alllugsas by the Management Board shall be adoptedrbgbsolute
majority of the votes cast.

The Management Board as a whole is responsiblehferday-to-day management, including comprehengsie
management control, financing and regulatory coamgié.

The Company and its operating companies are omgamibng clear functional reporting lines. Througihihe Group,
corporate and operating accountabilities, rolesraggdonsibilities are in place.

Managing directors A and B

Per the Company’s Articles of Association, the lbdoaf managing directors shall consist of one or anmanaging
directors A and may in addition consist of one @renmanaging directors B. The Supervisory Boardl stedermine
precisely the number of managing directors angtkeise number of managing directors of a specléiss.

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall gramirte of the managing directors A the title of “Ghiexecutive
Officer” who will be the chairman of the Managem@&atard, and may also grant to one of the managiregtdrs A the
title of “Chief Financial Officer” and other titld® managing directors A or managing directors B.

The board of managing directors shall representCimpany. The authority to represent the Compasmyl sitso be
vested in two managing directors among whom, if @nsore managing directors B are in office, asleme shall be a
managing director B.

Composition of the Management Board

Shraga Weisman (age 59, Israeli citizen, male)

On 10 October 2008, Mr Shraga Weisman was appoiasethanaging director A and President of the Mamagée
Board, for a term of four years and granted the @hief Executive Officer’.

Mr Weisman served as ‘Chief Executive Officer’ astdar Building Company Ltd. from 1997 until May 30@shdar
Building Company Ltd., listed on the Tel-Aviv Stoékxchange since May 2007, is one of the largedt estate
development companies in Israel focusing on resiglesnd commercial projects, hotels and proteetetbmmodation
projects. From 1990 to 1997, he was ‘Chief Exeeau®fficer’ of Natanya Tourism Development Compamich
developed residential and infrastructure developgrpeojects in Israel. Mr Weisman holds a BA titterh Tel-Aviv
University, an MSC title from Technion, the Israbistitute of Technology, and is a certified reatate appraiser in
Israel. Mr Weisman does not perform any activitgger than for the Company.

Tomasz tapiski (age 34, Polish citizen, male)

On 23 June 2008, Mr taifski was appointed as managing director A and membitre Management Board, for a term
of four years and granted the title ‘Chief FinahC#ficer’.

Between 2000 and 2008, Mr Lapki worked in the investment banking division of iOredit Group in Warsaw
(formerly of HVB and of Bank Austria Creditanstal) in UniCredit CA IB Poland (formerly CA IB Finaiad
Advisers). His experience in investment bankindudes mainly M&A (mergers and acquisitions) trarnsars as well
as other corporate finance related assignmentavasealso responsible for equity capital market (B@Mnsactions,
including the initial public offering of Ronson Eyre N.V. Before joining CA IB Financial Advisergpfm 1998 to
2000, Mr taphski worked for the consulting company Central Eerdprust. Mr tapiski graduated from Warsaw
School of Economics (Finance and Banking FacuM).Lapinski does not perform any activities other than tfoe
Company.
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Composition of the Management Board (cont'd)

Andrzej Gutowski (age 41, Polish citizen, male)

On 10 October 2008, Mr Gutowski was appointed asaging director A and member of the Management @dar a
term of four years and granted the title ‘Sales lsliagketing Director’.

Mr Gutowski has been employed by Ronson DevelopriMantagement Sp. z o.0. for five years as the ‘Safeb
Marketing Manager'. Mr Gutowski is also a membetied management boards of many subsidiaries o€tdmapany.
Before joining Ronson Development Group, betwee8412003 Mr Gutowski worked for Emmerson Sp. z 0.0.
(leading real estate agency and Advisory CompartlggrPolish market) as Director of Primary Markatsl member of
the management board. From 1988 until 1993, Mr Bsikd studied at Warsaw School of Economics (Foréigade).
Mr Gutowski does not perform any activities othwart for the Company.

David Katz (age 67, Israeli citizen, male)

David Katz was appointed as managing director Braathber of the Management Board of the Company Ootaber
2007. Since 1983, Mr Katz has been the Vice Prasidé U Dori Group Ltd and is currently the managérthe
Initiatives and Enterprises departments. From 186983, he was a performance engineer at AshtroginEering &
Construction Ltd. He is a member of the board efftilowing companies: U. Dori Group Ltd, |.T.R D&.V., D.A.C.

Engineering Ltd, ACAD Building and Investments Lied, ACAD Equipment and Assets (1979) Limited, LbriD
Technologies & Investments Ltd, Bay Heart Asse®94) Limited, Mildan Initiating and Investments Ladd David K.
Holdings Ltd. There is no conflict of interest beem the Company and other business activities dfaz.

Karol Pilniewicz (age 32, Polish citizen, male)

On 10 October 2008, Mr Pilniewicz was appointeadnasiaging director B and Member of the Managemeiarédfor
a term of four years.

Mr Pilniewicz is employed by GE Real Estate InvestinManagement Poland Sp. z 0.0.. Before joining R&al
Estate, between 2003-2008 Mr Pilniewicz was emmldye Aareal Bank A.G. In 2002-2003, Mr Pilniewicorked in
ING Real Estate Investment Management Poland. Nmig®icz is graduated from Academy of Economics in
Katowice. There is no conflict of interest betwale@ Company and other business activities of Mriilicz.

Amos Weltsch (age 59, Israeli citizen, male)

Amos Weltsch was appointed as managing directond raember of the Management Board member on 1 ©ctob
2007. Mr Weltsch has been the chief operating effiand member of the Management Board of Cinemg Cit
International N.V. since 1980. He has also heldovesr senior management positions with Israel Tlesatimited and
affiliated companies since 1980. From 1974 to 1%i8was a manager at L. Glickman Building Materialsd from
1978 to 1980, a managing director of Eitan Cememited. There is no conflict of interest betweea thompany and
other business activities of Mr Weltsch.
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Explanatory notes by reason of the Decree, Articl&0 of the Takeover Directive

By reason of the Decree of 5 April 2006 to impletaricle 10 of Directive 2004/25/EC of the Europdarliament
and the Council of the European Union of 21 ApfiD2 regarding public takeover bids, Ronson Europé. Kithe
Company’) provides the following explanation:

a. Capital structure of the Company
The capital of the company consists of one classhafes, being ordinary shares with a nominal vafueUR 0.02
each. Information on issued shares has been irctludger Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial 8tates.

b. Restriction on transferring shares or issued amsjtary receipts with the Company’s co-operation
The Articles of Association of the Company haverestriction with respect to the transfer of shald®e Company has
no depositary receipts issued with the Companyegeration.

c. Duty to report interests in the Company

The Company has been notified regarding sharet®ldéh a substantial holding in accordance with &at on
Financial Supervision (5% or more) in the Compahy.R. Dori B.V., GE Real Estate CE Residential Bahd
Amplico Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny and ING Otwafiyndusz Emerytalny).

d. Special controlling rights
The Company has issued no shares with specialatiomgrrights.

e. Employees’ shares
The Company currently does not hold any employesesischeme or option plan where the control rigines not
exercised directly by the employees.

f. Restriction on voting right and issue of depasiy receipts
No restrictions are currently imposed on votinghtgyattached to issued shares. The Company hasspasithry
receipts issued with the Company’s co-operation.

g. Agreements with shareholders

Currently, the Company is unaware of any sharelhaddeeements, except for the so-called Relationslgipeement
between its two largest shareholders, I.T.R. Dov.Bind GE Real Estate CE Residential B.V. whidis $arth certain
rights and obligations of the two largest sharetadwith respect to each other. For a descriptibthe Relation
Agreement reference is made to pages 75 to 77eo€tdmpany's Prospectus dated 10 October 2007 dabd@drom
the Company's website.ww.ronson.pl

h. Regulations pertaining to the appointment andsdiissal of executive and supervisory directors amlendments

to the Articles of Association
By virtue of articles 13 and 14 and articles 21 aAdf the Articles of Association, the general timegis authorised to
appoint, suspend or dismiss members of the ManagieBmard as well as members of the Supervisory &8o@he
Directors shall be appointed from a list of nommesontaining the names of at least two persongdoh vacancy, to
be drawn up by the Board of Supervisory Directdreomination which is drawn up in time shall bediimg. However,
the general meeting may deprive the nominatiortsobinding character by resolution adopted with aamity of not
less than two thirds of the votes cast, represgmtiare than half of the issued capital. The membgtise Management
Board and the Supervisory Board may be suspenddimissed by the general meeting at any time.réfsalution to
suspend or dismiss a Director has not been propgmséte Board of Supervisory Directors, the resotuto suspend or
dismiss a managing Director is adopted with nos l&n two thirds of the votes cast by shareho]derresenting
more than half of the issued capital.
By virtue of article 40 of the Articles of Assodi@t, the Articles of Association can only be ameahdéthe proposal of
the Board of Managing Directors subject to apprdk@i the Supervisory Board and the shareholdenesalution to
amend the Articles of Association shall be pasgedrbabsolute majority of the votes cast.

i. The powers of the board

By virtue of article 5 of the Articles of Associati, the Management Board is, subject to the appivihe Board of
Supervisory Directors, authorised to resolve twésshares for a certain period that lapses at 8b@ct2011 for a
maximum per issue of shares of 25% of the issuaglesbapital immediately prior to that issue, with aggregate
maximum of all non-issued shares of the authorstette capital.

j- Important agreements when issuing a public bid
The Company is not aware of any existing agreemith is relevant in the context of the issuanca ptiblic bid.

k. Agreements with executive directors or employeethe event of a public bid
The employment contracts the Members of the Managémoard do not contain any specific clauses whatér to a
change of control in the Company.
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Remuneration Report
Introduction

The Extraordinary General meeting of shareholdetd bn 1 October 2007, upon recommendation of tige&isory
Board, approved the Company’s remuneration polibictvsets forth the terms of remuneration of thenipers of the
Management Board. The same General meeting appl@ag-term incentive plan for members of the Mmment
Board and other key personnel of the Company andubsidiaries. The remuneration for the Superyi8ward was
also adopted at the same General shareholdersingeet

Remuneration Policy

The objective of the Company’s remuneration poigto provide a compensation program that allovesGbmpany to
attract, retain and motivate members of the Superyiand Management Boards and those who havehtéaater
traits, skills and background to successfully lea@dnage and supervise the Company. The remunernatiicy is
designed to reward members of the Management Baadi®ther key personnel for their contributionhte success of
the Company. Each of the Supervisory Boards membegives fixed annual remuneration and remunergtien
attended at meeting.

Governance

The General meeting of shareholders approves pdicés of the remuneration policy for the Managentdrd. The
General Meeting of Shareholders further determthesemuneration of the Supervisory Board. Comp@nsaf both
the Supervisory Board and Management Board is wederegularly. The Supervisory Board has a dedicate
Remuneration Committee.

Remuneration of the Management Board

Shraga Weisman

Mr Shraga Weisman, as a member of the ManagemeardBf Ronson Europe N.V., has entered into an eynpent
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsoevdélopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The terms of his
compensation package include a gross monthly féleeoPLN equivalent of EUR 2,500. Mr Weisman i®astitled to
reimbursement of housing and office costs amountipgo the PLN equivalent of EUR 3,000 per monthwell as
certain other social and medical insurance costs. ddmpensation also includes a reimbursement asomably
incurred and documented expenses related to theepperformance of his consulting agreement ufhé¢oaimount of
EUR 5,000 per calendar year as well as reimburseofahe costs related to his and his family’s &lato Israel up to
the maximum amount of EUR 20,000 per year and gpammycar.

In addition, he provides via his consulting compaeyices to Ronson Europe N.V. For these senhtre®¥/eisman’s
company charges Ronson Europe N.V. a monthly feEWR 22,500. His consulting company is also emtitie an
annual bonus set at 3.3% of the consolidated ampraaix profit of the Group.

Tomasz tapiski

Mr Tomasz tapiski, as a member of the Management Board of RoBsmape N.V., has entered into an employment
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Rons@vdélopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The conditidnth®
employment contract include a monthly salary of PUR,000 (increased from PLN 37,000 since June 2010)
reimbursement of the medical insurance costs aooh@any car. In addition, he is entitled to an ahfonus set at
0.75% of the consolidated annual pre-tax profithef Group.

Andrzej Gutowski

Mr Andrzej Gutowski, as a member of the ManagenBarard of Ronson Europe N.V., has entered into apl@yment
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsa@védopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The conditidnth®
employment contract include a monthly salary of PRBI000 (increased from PLN 20,000 since Januai1Y0
reimbursement of the medical insurance costs arairgany car. Mr Gutowski is also entitled to qudyteonus based
on the value of the apartments sold by the Compatiye particular quarter. His bonus is tied taueabf Company’s
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Remuneration of the Management Board (cont'd)

Sales and amounts to 0.1% of the value of sales.bbnus has been capped at a maximum amount of2B1000 per
quarter until end of December 2010. Mr Gutowskalso entitled to participate in the Company’s Emplo Stock
Incentive Plan (see below).

David Katz

Mr David Katz is not entitled to any remuneratiognni Ronson Europe nor from any of the Company'siglidries
except for a reimbursement of out-of-pocket expgsmetated to services provided to the Company (naomprising
travel and accommodation expenses).

Amos Weltsch

Mr Amos Weltsch is not entitled to any remuneratimm Ronson Europe nor from any of the Companyiss@diaries
except for a reimbursement of out-of-pocket expgmstated to services provided to the Company (inaiomprising
travel and accommodation expenses).

Karol Pilniewicz

Mr Karol Pilniewicz is not entitled to any remuntoa from Ronson Europe nor from any of the Company
subsidiaries except for a reimbursement of outaafket expenses related to services provided t&tmpany (mainly
comprising travel and accommodation expenses).

Remuneration of the Management Board in 2010

Total compensation of the Members of the ManagerBeatrd — not including any benefits from the empleystock
incentive plan (share based payments) and the aompar — amounted to PLN 3,825 thousand, of whiah
compensation of:

- Mr Shraga Weisman amounted to PLN 2,623 thousand,
- Mr Tomasz tapiski amounted to PLN 841 thousand,
- Mr Andrzej Gutowski amounted to PLN 361 thousand.

Long-term incentive plan

Towards the end of 2007, an employee stock incemlan (the ‘Employee Stock Incentive Plan’) waplemented.
The Employee Stock Incentive Plan comprises a maxiraf 4,000,000 shares for members of the ManageBward
and key employees of the Company. The General hgeti Shareholders has resolved to authorize thperSisory
Board to determine, with the participation of atdeone independent member of the Supervisory Btfaedexact terms
of any stock or stock-based incentive scheme, bagersons entitled to participate therein, upenrdtommendation
of the Management Board. In addition, under susbltgion, the Company may purchase its shareseiopen market
to satisfy any share entitlements upon exercisangf options issued or granted under its EmployeekSincentive
Plan. The actual grant of share options is disddas¢he Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statgm

On 5 November 2007, the Company issued 1,900,0806ngpwith an exercise price of PLN 5.75 each agttrto
obtain 300,000 shares. Following the resignatiokeyf management employees in 2008 and 2009, aabiaP60,667
options were cancelled, whereas the right to ol38id,000 shares was exercised during 2008. Duhagyéar ended
31 December 2010, the other selected employeegthat the option program had not exercised arthef options.

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

Each Supervisory Board member currently receivesaamual remuneration of EUR 8,900 and EUR 1,500 per
attendance at meetings or EUR 750 if attendanbg telephone. Moreover Supervisory Board membersatitled to
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses relatesetoices provided to the Company (mainly comprigiagel and
accommodation expenses). The Supervisory Board mesrdre not entitled to any benefits on terminatbriheir
service. Two Supervisory Board members (Mr Uri Daord Mr Frank Roseen) have waived their remunardtam the
Company. The remuneration paid (or accrued) toSiygervisory Board members includes only the renatiwar for

the remaining members: Mr Mark Segall, Mr Yair 8a¥ and to Mr Reuven Sharoni. The total Supervi®togard
remuneration during 2010 amounted to PLN 179 thodiggUR 45 thousand).
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Risk Profile and Risk Management

Risk Profile

Management believes that the residential market\abkole in Poland is less saturated than in angratbuntry within
the European Union, including also the developiogntries in Central and Eastern Europe, which imegal provides
for many opportunities for residential developétewever due to the fact that the Polish econonstilsexperiencing
many dynamic changes, it may be sensitive to piateump and down-turns. These market conditions farmmportant
and significant risk factor for the Company and dtier residential developers, as the developmeraess (including
stages such as the purchase of land, the prepaudtiand for construction works, the constructfmocess itself and,
finally, also the sale of apartments) may take s#we=ars from start until completion. It is impamt to understand that
decisions taken by the Company must assume aweiationg-term time horizon for each project as lwad a
significant volatility of land prices, constructi@ost levels and sales prices of apartments dthimgluration of projects
which may have a material impact on the Compangd$itability and financing needs.

Another specific risk is associated with the ragpéelopment of many Polish cities which very oftevolves a lack of
stability of development plans which could substdiyt impact the likelihood that projects on paudi@r sites are
realised as initially desired or planned. Quiteenftresidential developers are interested in buldng parcels without
zoning conditions or without a valid master plantfte area, which would allow for a better asses¢méthe ultimate
value of the plot. Pursuing such market opportesitinay result in relatively low prices of the lgvattcels. However,
this strategy may result in increasing operati@mal financial risks for the developer. Moreovermging development
plans of the cities could also impact the plannedetbpment and realisation of utility infrastrueuincluding water,
gas, sewage and electricity connections), whiatritecal factor for the Company and other develgpétowever, for a
vast majority of land parcels, the Company hasadlyeobtained zoning approvals, which reduces ftisis to the

Company significantly.

Another operating risk lies within the constructipnocess itself. The Company does not operate atremtion
business, but, instead, it hires third party gdnesatractors, who are responsible for running ¢bastruction and for
the finalisation of the project including obtainiredl permits necessary for safe use of the apatsnémportant
selection criteria when hiring a general contradtaiude experience, professionalism and finansteéngth of the
contractor as well as the quality of the insurgmalicy covering all risks associated with the comstion process.

Recent turbulence in the financial markets hasltex$in a lack of stability in the manner in whifthancing institutions

(banks) have approached both real estate compané#ndividual customers when applying for a moggéoan. As

the real estate business is very capital consuntiiregrole of the banking sector and its lendindités are crucial for

the Company leveraging not only when land parceds acquired but also during the later stages okldgwment,

especially during the construction phase. Moreaer availability of external financing is a crdaédement driving the
demand for apartments, as the vast majority ofcostomers are using mortgage secured loans tocfntoe purchase
of apartments.

For addition information on financial instrumenitsks see Note 33 of the Consolidated Financiak8tants.
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Risk Management

As part of its risk management measures, the Comjzarequesting, monitoring and purchasing insuegnalicies for
most common risks associated with the activitiest®fcontractors and their subcontractors, inclgdéonstruction
companies and architectural designers, as wellnagrance policies with respect to third-party ligdi In the

Company’s opinion, these insurance policies ofterquate coverage for the financial consequencasymisconduct
of Company’s business partners.

In order to mitigate the market risks involved witte Company’s activities, the Company appliesviaaié internal
procedures, which include, for instance, a stipatathat any acquisition of land requires unanimapproval of the
Management Board of the Company. Moreover, in nespdo the recent increasing market instabilitg, @ompany
decided to scale down the size of individual prigeaffered for sale, by splitting larger residehtojects into
relatively smaller phases (usually at below 10Qsufor each stage of completion). The Company'sigleor 2011
assume the commencement of construction of six preyects and four further stages of projects whaoh currently
under construction comprising some 1,100-1,400sumihich means that the average scale of each najecp i.e.
stage of completion, will be around 100 units. Td@mpany is mitigating the risks related to the ttdion process
by selecting and hiring experienced constructiomganies with good reputation and proven track-rdoiPoland.

Moreover, various other organisational measurespaiadedures were implemented in order to improeedtality of
operations and to incorporate adequate checks alatides, including approvals, authorisations, kevig investment
decisions and so on. As part of implementing bestyire provisions of both the Dutch and Polishpooate
governance codes, the Company introduced a tailotednal risk management and control system. Rugi@10, the
proper operation of the new internal risk managenaem control system has been monitored. The etiafuavas
discussed with the members of the Audit Committed ¢he Supervisory Board. Also, the Company hasta s
whistleblower rules in place to ensure that empdsyef the Company and its subsidiaries have thsilgbty of
reporting alleged irregularities of a general, @tienal or financial nature.

The Company’s Management Board believes that itstieg risk management measures are sufficientrowige a
reasonable degree of certainty as to the absenwoatefial inaccuracies in the financial reportilogses and fraud.

For a description of the Company’s financial instants risk management reference is made to Notef3Be
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Directors’ Report

General

Introduction

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’) is a Dutch pulsibmpany with its statutory seat in Rotterdam,Nle¢herlands,
and was incorporated on 18 June 2007.

The Company (together with its Polish subsidiarittee Group’) is active in the development and saleesidential
units, primarily apartments, in multi-family resit@l real-estate projects to individual customarsPoland. For
information about companies in the Group from whibkir financial data included in the Consolidatéidancial
Statements see note 1 of the Consolidated FinaGtagments.

The shares of the Company are traded on the Wastaek Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31 iDkee
2010, 64.2% of the outstanding shares are heldTofRl Dori B.V. (‘ITR Dori’), 15.3% of the outstanty shares are
held by GE Real Estate CE Residential B.V. (‘GE IHestate’) and the remaining 20.5% of the outstagdihares are
held by other investors including Amplico Otwartyirflusz Emerytalny and ING Otwarty Fundusz Emerytaln
whereby each party is holding an interest of betwg% and 10% of the outstanding shares. On 8 Maedii, the
market price was PLN 1.43 per share giving the Gomgm market capitalization of PLN 389.5 million.

Company overview

The Company is an experienced, fast-growing andehyo residential real estate developer expandmgebgraphic
reach to major metropolitan areas across Polanderaging upon its large portfolio of secured sitibg Company
believes it is well positioned to become a lead#gjdential development company throughout Poland.

The Company aims to maximize value for its shamsl by a selective geographical expansion in Blotenwell as
the creation of a portfolio of real estate develepimproperties. Management believes the Companypbsaisioned
itself strongly to navigate the currently challemgieconomic environment. On the one hand, the P@onomy
appears to remain stabile and is continuing to awgr which potentially bodes well for the Compangtsspects. On
the other hand, the debt crisis, which continueglag out in much of Europe and its destabilizingpact on the Euro,
may continue to have a negative impact on the P@t®nomy, and the Company’s overall prospectsa Assult, the
Company continues to adhere to a development giraiat allows it quickly to adjust to these unagrtconditions by
spreading risks through closely monitoring and ptigédly modifying the number of projects and theirality and sizes
as well as through considering various other gqufgcal locations to commence development.

Until 31 December 2010, the Group completed fourfemjects comprising 1,768 units with a total av€431,800 M,
having delivered to clients 1,658 units with a tat@a of 116,400 101 units in these completed projects, with altot
area of 14,600 fare expected to be delivered to clients durintl2@ee page 25).

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Groupnishe midst of developing nine projects comprisagptal of 581
units, with a total area of 40,500°m.10 units in these projects, with a total ared®000 M, are expected to be
completed during 2011 (see page 25).

In addition, the Group has a pipeline of 22 prgjentdifferent stages of preparation, comprisingragimately 5,400

units with a total area of approximately 386,400fan future development in Warsaw, PoansVroctaw and Szczecin.
The Group plans to commence in 2011 six new prejantl four new stages of other projects that anesictly under

construction (see pages 27 and 28).

Despite challenging market conditions, the Compsirsgles results have been gradually improving siheefourth
quarter of 2008, which was the most difficult perfor the Company as well as for the entire marReting 2009, the
Company sold 263 units with the total value PLN .B4@illion, while during 2010, the net sales ameuglnto 270 units
with the total value PLN 173.3 million, which mamggent believes was a quite positive result givem rirarket
conditions and the size of the Company’s offerifthat was diminished in the first half and increhsaly during the
second half of 2010). As the number of units offieng the Company diminished due to progressingsséte Company
expects to benefit from overall improving marketseneby the Company has already opened seven ngectsran
2010 (majority of them in second half of 2010) gotans to initiate during 2011 another six projeamsl four stages of
currently run projects. In order to minimize markiek, management is scaling down these new pi®jett relatively
smaller stages.
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Market overview

The Polish economy has proven to be relativelyngtreven in the recent turbulent times, which in bomation with the

general paucity of dwellings in Poland (in compamigo all other European countries) creates, whahagement
believes to be, solid long term prospects for ferttevelopment of the residential real estate narkspite of the
recent downturn. Management believes the Compamelspositioned to adapt to changing market caodg and is
preparing new projects for development, which vl distinguished in the market by their locationalgy and

attractive pricing. Positive sales results of tr@mpany during 2009 and 2010 seem to confirm thatQGbmpany has
indeed successfully adapted to the changing markétonment.

Another distinctive factor for the Polish residahtinarket is the fact that construction of as mastover 158,000 new
apartments was commenced in Poland in 2010, whkioinly by some 10% lower number than in the peak 2608. It
confirms that many developers were able to pregaogects and arrange relevant financing, which Iteduin
increasing competition and translated into incmgsxpectations of the customers. The managemeatwise of
increasing requirements of the Company’s custora@s has implemented internal processes aimed atovimg
customer services by the Company.

In addition, to further minimize market risk, th@m@pany is now taking a very selective approach whiiating new
projects. In the preparation phase of all projegteat emphasis is put on splitting the projects imaller parts.
Management is also cognizant of the tightened tmdirkets. Accordingly, when planning its newesbjgcts, the
Company has prepared for increased costs of dedniding as well as for more demanding debt facdituctures that
are being imposed by the lending banks.
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2010

A. Projects completed

The table below presents information on the fowjquts that were completed during the year ended&iember
2010:

Project name Location Number of units Area of units(m?
Nautica® Warsaw 149 10,648
Gemini®) Warsaw 164 13,126
Constans |+11©) Warsaw 26 7,279
Gardenia” Warsaw 22 3,683
Total 361 34,736

(*) For additional information see section ‘B. Resuiteakdown by projects’ below.

B. Results breakdown by project

Total revenue of the Group recognized during thar yended 31 December 2010 amounted to PLN 241 .18%mil
whereas cost of sales before write-down adjustraemdunted to PLN 176.4 million and after write-doaajustment
amounted to PLN 178.6 million, which resulted igrass profit before write-down adjustment amountmdLN 64.9
million and a gross margin of 26.9% and after wdtavn adjustment amounting to PLN 62.7 million aadjross
margin of 26.0%.

The following table specifies revenue, cost of saled gross profit in 2010 on a project by propedis:

Information on the i Gross Gross
delivered units Revenue!” Cost of saled™ profit margin
Number Area of PLN PLN PLN

Project name of units units (m?) (thousand) % (thousand) % (thousand) %
Nautica 137 9,744 85,993 35.7% 64,472 36.5% 21,521 25.0%
Gemini 149 11,687 93,423 38.7% 67,718 38.4% 25,705 27.5%
Galileo 71 5,107 36,774 15.2% 25,184 14.3% 1,590 31.5%
Imaginarium |1 20 1,329 13,286 5.5% 9,276 %.3 4,010 30.2%
Constans | + 11 2 585 4,313 1.8% 4,078 2.3% 235 5.4%
Meridian 2 349 2,964 1.2% 1,799 1.0% 1,165 39.3%
Gardenia 3 501 2,058 0.9% 2,058 1.2% - 0.0%
Imaginarium | 2 147 1,544 0.6% 1,054 0.6% 049 31.7%
Other N.A N.A 910 0.4% 717 0.4% 193 21.2%
Total / Average 386 29,449 241,265 100.0% 176,356 100.0% 64,909 26.9%
Write-down
adjustment N.A N.A N.A N.A 2,188 N.A (2,188) N.A
Results after write-
down adjustment 386 29,449 241,265 100.0% 178,544 100.0% 62,721 26.0%

(*) Revenue is recognized upon the transfer of sigmifidisks and rewards of the ownership of the resi@l unit to the buyer, i.e. upon signing of fretocol of
technical acceptance and the transfer of the keg@fesidential unit to the buyer.

(**) Cost of sales allocated to the delivered units prapnally to the expected total value of the pobje
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2010 (cont'd)

B. Results breakdown by project (cont’d)

Nautica

The construction of the Nautica project was conggléh June 2010. The Nautica project was develaped land strip
of 9,698 n located in the Ursynéw district in Warsaw (Strigkich Street). The project comprises 4 five-storaylti-
family residential buildings with a total of 148 aapments and 1 commercial unit and an aggregate 8pace of
10,648 m.

Gemini

The construction of the Gemini project was compleéteJune 2010. The Gemini project was developed @mnd strip
of 3,929 nf located in the Ursynéw district in Warsaw (KENe®th) situated next to the subway station Imieline T
project comprises one multifamily building of 1Véds with a total of 149 apartments and 15 comraéraiits with an
aggregate floor space of 13,126.m

Galileo

The construction of the Galileo project was congdeh March 2009. The Galileo project was developed land strip
of 8,598 n located in the city center district of Poandhe Galileo housing project comprises 5 nineestpmulti-
family residential buildings with a total of 226 axpments and 6 commercial units with an aggredatar space of
16,700 A.

Imaginarium 1l

The construction of the Imaginarium Il housing estaas completed in August 2009. This project wagetbped on
part of a land strip of 7,0427focated in the Bielany district in Warsaw. The gimarium Il housing estate comprises 3
four-storey, multi-family buildings with total 65artments with an aggregate usable floor space7604nt.

Constans | + Il

The first and second phases of the Constans hoysimigct were completed in July 2010 and Novemb@&t02
respectively. This project was developed on paw &fnd strip of 36,377 Tocated in Konstancin near Warsaw. The
first and the second phases of the Constans hopsojgct comprise 8 semi-detached units (total assy with an
aggregate floor space of 4,47% and 5 semi-detached units (total 10 units) wittaggregate floor space of 2,808, m
respectively.

Meridian

The construction of the Meridian housing estate e@sapleted in October 2007. This project was degyedoon a land
strip of 5,196 rh located in the Wola district of Warsaw. The Meaitihousing estate comprise 3 seven- and nine-
storey, multi-family buildings with a total of 20fpartments and 7 commercial units and an aggrédigatespace of
15,000 M.

Gardenia

The Gardenia project was completed in December Z®#0project was developed on a land strip of 7 2%cated
in J6zefostaw near Warsaw. The Gardenia projesingle family housing (houses in a row) projectnpoise 22 units
with an aggregate floor space of 3,683 m

Imaginarium |

The construction of the Imaginarium | housing estafis completed in August 2008. This project waslbped on
part of a land strip of 10,343’nfocated in the Bielany district in Warsaw. The gimarium housing estate comprises
two-storey buildings with a total of 58 apartmewtth an aggregate floor space of 3,983 m

Other

Other revenues are mainly associated with salésegbarking places and storages in other projeetswere completed
in previous years, as well as rental revenues.

Write-down adjustment

During the year ended 31 December 2010, as a reshlet Realizable Value (NRV) analyses and revieavsvrite-
down adjustment for the Gardenia project was madée amount of PLN 2,188 thousand. For additiagmfairmation
regarding Gardenia project see Business highlightsng the year ended 31 December 2010 — F. Otwmres”
(page20).
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C. Units sold during the year

The table below presents information on the totétisusold (i.e. total number of units for which lempany signed the
preliminary sale agreements with the clients), mythe year ended 31 December 2010:

Units sold during

Units sold until the year ended Units for sale as at
Project name Location 31 December 2009 31 December 2010 31 December 2010  Total
Nautica® Warsaw 99 48 2 149
Geminj ©/® Warsaw 92 62 2 156
Galileo®’ @ Pozna 147 65 19 231
Imaginarium I Warsaw 56 2 - 58
Imaginarium 1) Warsaw 58 6 1 65
Imaginarium 111 Warsaw - 31 14 45
Gardenid™ Warsaw - 16 6 22
Meridian® Warsaw 205 1 - 206
Constans | + II) Warsaw 2 6 18 26
Constans IIf” Warsaw - - 10 10
Nautica 11 Warsaw - 1 2 3
Naturalis [ Warsaw - 10 42 52
Naturalis 11 Warsaw - - 60 60
Sakura (7 Warsaw - 13 107 120
Verdis 1 Warsaw - 8 131 139
Impressio [ Wroctaw - 1 69 70
Essentia Szczecin - - 82 82
Total 659 270 565 1,494

® For information on the completed projects see “Bess highlights during the year ended 31 Decem@&0 2 B. Results
breakdown by project” (pages 17 and 18).

™ For information on current projects under constiioat see “Outlook for 2011 — B. Current projectden construction” (pages
25 to 27).

@ After deduction of 8 units that were transferregbtoperty and equipment, which are planned to bel @esethe Company’s
headquarter in Warsaw (for additional informatiomesnote 15 of the Consolidated Financial Statements)

@) After deduction of 2 units that were transferregbtoperty and equipment, currently used as the Coripaffices inPozna (for
additional information see note 15 of the ConsdkdaFinancial Statements).

D. Commencements of new projects

The table below presents information on the newateim@w projects/stages that commenced during the geded 31
December 2010:

Number Area of
Project name Location of units units (m?)
Imaginarium 111 ©) Warsaw 45 3,800
Nautica 11 Warsaw 3 600
Naturalis I©) Warsaw 52 2,900
Naturalis 1) Warsaw 60 3,400
Sakura [ Warsaw 120 8,100
Verdis 1) Warsaw 139 9,400
Impressio [ Wroctaw 70 4,400
Essentia { Szczecin 82 5,200
Total 571 37,800

® For additional information see section “Outlook f2011 — B. Current projects under construction” ¢es 25-27).
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E. Land purchase

On 23 December 2010, the Group acquired 57.8%eetjuity in Landex Sp. z o0.0. (“Landex”) for a taamount of
PLN 7.5 million(for additional information see note 32 and 36 ef @onsolidated Financial Statements). In connection
with and in addition to this acquisition, the Grolags committed financing through granting loand.dandex for the
purchase of plot of land for which Landex had s@yaepreliminary sale and purchase agreement (Laas dscribed
below). The amount of loans committed by Ronsot wéspect to this transaction, including also faiag required by
Landex to complete this land acquisition, amoun¢eELN 9.5 million.

As per the acquisition date, Landex was the owher ot of land with an area of 8,953 tocated in Warsaw, Wola
District, at Jana Kazimierza Street (“Land 1”). dddition, Landex was a party to a preliminary sabel purchase
agreement of another plot of land with an area,?89 nf (“Land 2”) located nearby Land 1.

In total Land 1 and Land 2 shall allow the Grougbtald multifamily buildings that will comprise 639nits with an
aggregate floor space of 35,008.m

F. Other issues

In addition to the write-down adjustment in the @Ganria project made in the amount of PLN 2.2 millidre Company
decided to proceed with recognizing an impairmess lon trade receivables from the general contrattihis project
amounting to PLN 1.5 million included in other re@bles (for more details please see “Overvieweslutts — other
expenses”).

Overview of results

The Company’s net income for the year ended 31 bee 2010 was PLN 35,091 thousand and can be supatas
follows:
For year ended
31 December
2010 2009
PLN
(thousands, except per share data)

Revenue 241,265 116,309
Cost of sales (178,544) (76,115)
Gross profit 62,721 40,194
Changes in fair value of investment property - 5,602

Selling and marketing expenses (7,397) (3,331)
Administrative expenses (16,129) (14,172)
Other expense (6,683) (2,563)
Other income 610 2,117
Result from operating activities 33,122 27,847
Finance income 2,411 851
Finance expense (428) (2,710)
Net finance income/(expense) 1,983 (1,859)
Profit before taxation 35,105 25,988
Income tax expense (14) (4,954)

Profit for the year 35,091 21,034

Net earnings per share (basic and diluted) 0.13 0.09
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Overview of results (cont'd)
Revenue

Total revenue increased by PLN 125.0 million (18@)4rom PLN 116.3 million during the year ended Bécember
2009 to PLN 241.3 million during the year ended Bdcember 2010, which increase is primarily expldibg an
increase in apartments delivered to customersringt®f area size (in fhoffset in part by a decrease in average selling
price per M.

Costof sales

Cost of sales increased by PLN 102.4 million (19¢).6rom PLN 76.1 million during the year ended 3&d@mber
2009 to PLN 178.5 million during the year endedCBicember 2010, which is primarily explained by acréase in
number of apartments delivered to customers atetins of area size (in9n

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by PLNn#llion (122.1%) from PLN 3.3 million for the yeanded

31 December 2009 to PLN 7.4 million for the yeaded 31 December 2010, which is primarily explaibgdthe

increase in the number of projects the Group wagldping and the number of apartments that wereredf for sale,
which resulted in a significant increase in costs ddvertising and promotion in newspapers, magaszand on the
internet, as well as for outdoor posters and béfos.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by PLN 2.0 mml([p3.8%) from PLN 14.2 million for the year end&t December
2009 to PLN 16.2 million for the year ended 31 Deber 2010. The increase is primarily due to:

e anincrease in the Management Board bonus whichltsilated in proportion to the profit before thattincreased
by 35.1%;

e anincrease in tax and legal advisory servicesaam implemented corporate restructuring of theupr

Other expenses

Other expenses increased by PLN 4.1 million (160.ff&m PLN 2.6 million for the year ended 31 DecemB009 to
PLN 6.7 million for the year ended 31 December 201 increase is mainly due to:

e a one-time event related to the write-down expeémsmnnection with the abandoned Aurora project @amting to
PLN 2.5 million. For additional information see “ditional information to the report” (page 32);

e animpairment on trade receivables amounting to PIS\million and was included in other receivables.

Other income

Other income decreased by PLN 1.5 million (71.2%)f PLN 2.1 million for the year ended 31 Decemb@d9 to
PLN 0.6 million for the year ended 31 December 204Kich is primarily explained by a decrease ineraes from
contractual penalties and other compensation redeiv

Result from operating activities

As a result of the factors described above, the gamy's operating result increased by PLN 5.3 millioom an
operating profit of PLN 27.8 million for the yeanded 31 December 2009 to an operating profit of BBNL million
for the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Overview of results (cont'd)

Net finance income

Finance income and expenses are accrued and tzgatals part of the cost price of inventory to éxtent this is
directly attributable to the construction of resitial units. Unallocated finance income and expsim# capitalized are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

The table below shows the finance income and exygehsfore capitalization into inventories and thialtfinance
income and expenses capitalized into inventories.

For the year ended 31 December 2010
PLN (thousands)

Total Amount Recognized as
amount capitalized profit or loss
Finance income 2,483 (72) 2,411
Finance expense (14,869) 14,441 (428)
Net finance (expense)/income (12,386) 14,369 1,983

For the year ended 31 December 2009
PLN (thousands)

Total Amount Recognized as
amount capitalized profit or loss
Finance income 954 (103) 851
Finance expense (20,737) 18,027 (2,710)
Net finance (expense)/income (19,783) 17,924 (1,859)

Net finance expenses before capitalization decdebgePLN 7.4 million (37.4%) from PLN 19.8 millioduring the
year ended 31 December 2009 to PLN 12.4 milliorinduthe year ended 31 December 2010, which is @ltre§ a
decrease in finance expense due to a decreasans leceived from banks and a decrease of intetest, as well as an
increase in finance income due to an increasedrt$érm deposits kept by the Company on bank ausou

Income tax

The effective tax rate for the year ended 31 Dean2010 is 0.04% in comparison to 19.1% for ther yraled 31
December 2009. The decrease in the effective texisaxplained by the recognition of tax assedsiterd following the
organisational restructuring of the Group.
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Selected financial data

Exchange rate of Euro versus the Polish Zloty

Average Minimum Maximum Year end
PLN/EUR exchange rate exchange rate exchange rate exchange rate
2010 (12 months) 3.994 3.836 4.177 3.960
2009 (12 months) 4.328 3.917 4.900 4.108

Source: National Bank of Poland (‘NBP’)

Selected financial data EUR PLN
(thousands, except per share data and number of stes)
For year ended 31 December or as at 31 December

2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues 60,407 26,874 241,265 116,309
Gross profit 15,704 9,287 62,721 40,194
Profit before taxation 8,789 6,005 35,105 25,988
Profit for the year 8,786 4,860 35,091 21,034
Cash from/(used in) operating activities 28,126 (3,449) 112,335 (14,927)
Cash from/(used in) investing activities (2,168) 15 (8,657) 66
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (16,734) 7,759 (66,834) 33,582
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,225 4,326 36,844 18,721
Inventory 137,255 157,316 543,529 646,253
Total assets 170,462 180,962 675,030 743,391
Long term liabilities 14,792 27,681 58,576 113,715
Advances received 11,199 17,860 44,347 73,367
Short term liabilities (including advances received 50,272 60,238 199,077 247,458
Shareholders’ equity 105,398 93,042 417,377 382,218
Share capital 5,054 5,054 20,762 20,762
Average number of equivalent shares (basic) 272,360,000 235,672,238 272,360,000 235,672,238
Average number of equivalent shares (diluted) 272,999,333 236,311,571 272,999,333 236,311,571
Net earnings per share (basic and diluted) 0.032 0.021 0.129 0.089

*Information is presented in EUR solely for presgiun purposes. Due to the appreciation of theidPoZloty against the Euro over the past year,
the Statement of Financial Position data do notusately reflect the actual comparative financialsg®mn of the Company. The reader should
consider changes in the PLN / EUR exchange rag®i® comparing to 2009, when reviewing this data.
Selected financial data were translated from PLté IBUR in the following way:

(i) Statement of financial position data were tiatsd using the period end exchange rate publighethe National Bank of Poland for the last

day of the period.

(i) Statement of comprehensive income and cas¥sfttata were translated using the arithmetical agerof average exchange rates published

by the National Bank of Poland.
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Financial condition

Liquidity and capital resources

The Company funds its day-to-day operations pralbjfrom cash flows provided by its sales actastias well as from
borrowings under several loan facilities. The carflow from operating activities, as described belthas enabled the
Company not only to proceed with the developmentsfesidential projects but also to redeem itskblorrowings
significantly during the year ended 31 DecemberQ2@hilst at the same time maintaining sufficiewuidity for its
day-to-day operations. The total amount of cash eash equivalents increased from PLN 58.0 millienaa 31
December 2009 to PLN 94.9 million as at 31 Decen2iod©.

Cash flows from operating activities

The Company’s net cash inflow from operating atiggi for the year ended 31 December 2010 amouatPdlN 112.3
million which compares to a net cash outflow usedperating activities during the year ended 31dbgmer 2009 of
PLN 14.9 million. The increase is principally due & decrease in the cash flow used in inventorynfRLN 52.0
million during the year ended 31 December 2009 wash inflow from inventory amounting to PLN 122riillion
during the year ended 31 December 2010. The irereathe net cash inflow from operating activitissnitigated by
(1) a decrease in the cash flow used in trade #mer payables and accrued expense from a cashviofidcPLN 1.4
million during the year ended 31 December 2009 ¢tash outflow of PLN 6.3 million during year end&t December
2010 and (2) a decrease in the cash flows fromrashsareceived from a cash inflow of PLN 19.0 miliduring the
year ended 31 December 2009 to a cash outflow bif 3.0 million during the year ended 31 December®20

Cash flows from investing activities

The Company’s investing activities is primarily atdd to proceeds from sale of property and equipniére cash
outflow used in investing activities amounted toNPB.7 million during the year ended 31 December®@hich

compares to a net cash outflow of PLN 66 thousamihd the year ended 31 December 2009. The incrieasash
outflow used in investing activities is explainey the acquisition of a share in a new joint ventdueing the year
ended 31 December 2010 resulting in a cash outffioRALN 7.4 million.

Cash flows from financing activities

The cash outflow used in financing activities tdIPLN 66.8 million during the year ended 31 Delben010 which
compares to a cash inflow from financing activiteeaounting to PLN 33.6 million for the year endedd3cember
2009. This increase of cash flow used in finan@aotjvities is primarily explained by the issue efnshares during the
year ended December 2009 with net proceeds amguttirPLN 71.6 million whereas during the year enédd
December 2010 no new shares were issued. In addh@nk borrowings during the year ended 31 Decerb&0
(PLN 66.1 million) decreased even more comparethto net decrease during the year ended 31 DeceRfis
(PLN 38.0 million).

Debt and net debt position

As of 31 December 2010, the Company’s total deltiaioks, related and third parties amounted to P&RLSL million
(31 December 2009: PLN 249.0 million), comprisingcwed bank loans amounting to PLN 123.9 milliod (3
December 2009: PLN 188.7 million). Taking into aeebthe Company’s available cash position at 31elbder 2010
amounting to PLN 94.9 million (31 December 2009NP48.0 million), the net debt position of the Compamounted
to PLN 87.6 million as at 31 December 2010 (31 Daner 2009: PLN 191.0 million).

Employees

The average number of personnel employed by thep@oynand its subsidiaries — on a fulltime equivalessis —
increased from 41 in 2009 to 49 in 2010. The ineee@ number of employees results from the Comsaggdwing
activities following the commencement of new pragein cities where the Company was already actsvevell as in
two new cities, being Wroctaw and Szczecin.

Research and development

The Company and its subsidiaries are not involweghly research and development activities.
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Environmental protection

The Company, in conducting its business activitizglertakes to comply with all laws and regulaticegarding use of
land and protection of the natural environment. Td@mpany is not a party to any pending proceedmegsrding
potential environmental protection violations.

Outlook for 2011

A. Completed projects

The table below presents information on the tataidential units in the eight completed projects the Company has
sold and delivered during 2010 as well as is expgdb sell and deliver during the year 2011:

Number of residential Number of residential Number of
units sold units delivered residential
During the During the units expected
Until 31 year ended Until 31 year ended to be delivered
Total December 31 December December 31 December (*) until 31
Project name Location  units 2009 2010 Total 2009 2010 Total December 2011
Galileo™ '® Pozna 231 147 65 212 124 71 195 36
Constans | + If” Warsaw 26 2 6 8 - 2 2 24
Gardenid™ Warsaw 22 - 16 16 - 3 3 19
Nautica®™ Warsaw 149 99 48 147 - 137 137 12
Imaginarium 11 Warsaw 65 58 6 64 43 20 63 2
Gemini™' @ Warsaw 156 92 62 154 - 149 149 7
Meridian " Warsaw 206 205 1 206 204 2 206 -
Imaginarium I Warsaw 58 56 2 58 55 2 57 1
Total 913 659 206 865 426 386 812 101

©  For the purpose of disclosing information relatedthe particular projects, the word “sell” (“sold) is used, that relates to signing the
preliminary sale agreement with the client for #ade of the apartment; whereas the word “deliveitidlivered”) relates to the transferring of

significant risks and rewards of the ownershiphaf tesidential unit to the client.

For information on the completed projects see siBess highlights during the year ended 31 Decer@940 — B. Results breakdown by
project” (pages 17 to 18).

(1) After deduction of 8 units that were transfert® property and equipment, which are planned ¢oubed as the Company’s headquarter in
Warsaw (for additional information see note 15h# Consolidated Financial Statements) .

(2) After deduction of 2 units that were transéerto property and equipment, currently used asxhimpany’s offices in Pozagfor additional
information see note 15 of the Consolidated Finan8tatements).

)

B. Current projects under construction

The table below presents information on nine pitsjdor which completion is scheduled in 2011 and20The
Company has obtained construction permits foraall fprojects and has commenced construction.

Units sold until Expected

Total area of Total 31 December  completion of
Project name Location units (m?) units 2010 construction
Constans Ill Warsaw 2,700 10 - 2011
Imaginarium IlI Warsaw 3,800 45 31 2011
Nautica Il Warsaw 600 3 1 2011
Naturalis | Warsaw 2,900 52 10 2011
Naturalis Il Warsaw 3,400 60 - 2012
Sakura | Warsaw 8,100 120 13 2012
Verdis | Warsaw 9,400 139 8 2012
Impressio | Wroctaw 4,400 70 1 2012
Essentia | Szczecin 5,200 82 - 2012
Total 40,500 581 64
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Outlook for 2011 (cont'd)

B. Current projects under construction (cont’'d)

Constans
Description of project

The third phase of the Constans housing projeleisg developed on a land strip of 36,377latated in Konstancin
near Warsaw and will comprise 5 semi-detached (utal 10 units) with an aggregate floor space, @00 .

Stage of development

Construction of the Constans project commencecehrirary 2008 and is expected to be completed iffistequarter
of 2011.

Imaginarium 11l

Description of project

The Imaginarium Ill project is being developed otaad strip of 7,600 flocated in the Bielany district in Warsaw
(Gwiazdzista Street) and is situated next to the Imaginaf and Imaginarium Il projects. The project is@ntinuation
of the Imaginarium | and Imaginarium Il concepttéims of quality and design. The Imaginarium lllubimg estate
compri:%es 2 four-storey, multi-family buildings tvitotal 45 apartments with an aggregate usabler fipace of
3,800 m.

Stage of development

The construction of the Imaginarium Il project cmenced in May 2010 and is expected to be completéde third
quarter of 2011.

Nautica Il

Description of project

The Nautica Il project is being developed on a latrip of 1,051 rhlocated in the Ursynéw district in Warsaw
(Stryjenskich Street). The project will comprise one semtaghed unit and one house (in total 3 units) aith
aggregate floor space of 606.m

Stage of development

The construction of the Nautica Il project commehdae June 2010 and is expected to be completetiénsécond
quarter of 2011.

Naturalis | and Il

Description of project

The first and second phases of the Naturalis praejecbeing developed on a part of a land strip19800 i located in
tomianki near Warsaw. The first and the second ghad this project will comprise 1 four-storey, tihmily
residential building with a total of 52 apartmeatsd an aggregate floor space of 2,900amd 1 four-storey, multi-
family residential building with a total of 60 apaents and an aggregate floor space of 3,4§@empectively. In total
the Naturalis project shall comprise around 49@sunith a total estimated flat usable area of 30,26

Stage of development

The construction of the first and the second phadethe Naturalis project commenced in Septembet02and
December 2010 and are expected to be completetheinfaurth quarter of 2011 and the first quarter26fl2,
respectively.

Sakura |

Description of project

The first phase of the Sakura project is being el on a part of a land strip of 21,008 lotated in the Mokotéw
district in Warsaw (Klobucka Street). The first phaof this project will comprise 1 eleven-storewlltirfamily
residential building with a total of 99 apartmeatsl 21 commercial units and an aggregate floorespa8,100 rfi In
total, the Sakura project shall comprise around @it with a total estimated flat usable area@®880 .

Stage of development

The construction of the first phase of the Sakuogget commenced in September 2010 and is expsetee completed
in the second quarter of 2012.
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Outlook for 2011 (cont'd)

B. Current projects under construction (cont’'d)

Verdis |
Description of project

The first phase of the Verdis project is being dewed on a part of a land strip of 16,308lotated in the Wola district
in Warsaw (Sowfskiego Street). The first phase of this project edimprise 3 seven, eight and ten-storey, multiifyam
residential buildings with a total of 128 apartngeand 11 commercial units and an aggregate floacespf 9,400
In total, the Verdis project shall comprise aro@8® units with a total estimated flat usable are260100 .

Stage of development

The construction of the project commenced in Noven#010 and is expected to be completed in thd tpiarter of
2012.

Impressio |

Description of project

The first phase of the Impressio project is beimyeloped on a part of a land strip of 14,500 latated in the
Grabiszyn district in Wroctaw. The first phase bfst project will comprise 3 four-storey, multi-fasniresidential
buildings with a total of 70 apartments and an aggte floor space of 4,400°nin total, the Impressio project shall
comprise around 190 units with a total estimatatidsable area of 12,80F.m

Stage of development

The construction of the project commenced in Oat@fs0 and is expected to be completed in the skgoarter of
2012.

Essentia | (previously named Mozart)

Description of project

The first phase of the Essentia project is beingeliped on a part of a land strip of 30,300latated in Szczecin at
Dunska Street. The first phase of this project willnpwise 2 four and five-storey, multi-family residiah buildings
with a total of 82 apartments and an aggregater fipace of 5,200 Min total, the Essentia project shall comprise
around 499 units with a total estimated flat usalé= of 36,600 fn

Stage of development

The construction of the project commenced in Noven#010 and is expected to be completed in thd tpiarter of
2012.

C. Projects for which construction work is planneéd commence during 2011

As the number of available apartments diminishesl tdyprogressing sales in first half of 2010, tlenPany intends to
benefit from improving market conditions and iniéid new projects in second half of 2010 and planitiate a
number of new projects during 2011. However, ineorid minimize the market risk, the managemenhef@Gompany
is scaling down new projects into relatively smalitages. Moreover, the commencement plan assumzekial
openings spread during the next few quarters arnberevent of any market deterioration or diffiest with securing
financing by the banks for the considered projet@nagement may delay some of those plans.

a) New Projects

Magellan

The Magellan project will be developed on a para ¢dnd strip of 12,150 TMocated in Warsaw at Magazynowa Street.
The project will comprise 271 units with an aggtegfioor space of 21,000 vand will be divided into 2 or more
phases. The Company is considering opening thepirase of this project during 2011. The first stégto comprise
136 units with an aggregate floor space of 10,550 m

Picasso

The Picasso project will be developed on a lanig s 8,121 m located in Wroctaw at Na Grobli Street. The projec
will comprise 158 units with an aggregate floor paf 7,500 h The Company is considering opening this project
during 2011.
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Outlook for 2011 (cont'd)

C. Projects for which construction work is plannéd commence during 2011 (cont’d)

Matisse

The Matisse project will be developed on a partaaf! strip of 25,411 flocated in Wroctaw at Buforowa Street. The
project will comprise 433 units with an aggregdtef space of 26,150 7rand will be divided into 3 or more phases.
The Company is considering opening the first phlefgbis project during 2011. The first stage isctomprise 95 units
with an aggregate floor space of 6,250 m

Copernicus

The Copernicus project will be developed on a Isinih of 5,605 rhlocated in Poznaat Kascielna Street. The project
will comprise 283 units with an aggregate floor @af 16,708 m The Company is considering opening the project
during 2011.

Plejada

The Plejada project will be developed on a par tdnd strip of 39,604 fiocated in Tulce near Poznarlhe project

will comprise 274 houses with an aggregate floacspof 17,806 mand will be divided into 8 or more phases. The
Company is considering opening the first phasessmadnd phase of this project during 2011. The dingt second stage

is to comprise 30 houses with an aggregate floacesmf 2,057 fand 20 houses with an aggregate floor space of
1,371 3, respectively.

Jana Kazimierza

The Jana Kazimierza project will be developed opagt of a land strip of 16,192°nocated in Warszawa at Jana
Kazimierza Street. The project will comprise 63%simith an aggregate floor space of 35,106amd will be divided
into 4 stages. The Company is considering opertiegfitst phase of this project during 2011. Thetfistage is to
comprise 167 units with an aggregate floor spac®,d17 m. Ronson Group purchased 57.8% in this project (i.e
57.8% of the shares in the company Landex Sp..zwtdch is running this project).

b) New stages of running projects

Gemini Il

The Gemini Il project is a continuation of Geminihiat was completed in 2010. The project will coisgrl82 units
with an aggregate floor space of 13,708 ffhe Company is considering commencing developroérhis project
during the first quarter of 2011.

Sakura

The Sakura Il project is a continuation of Sakuvehich is currently under construction. The projedt comprise 136
units with an aggregate floor space of 8,200 fine Company is considering commencing developrogttiis project
during the fourth quarter of 2011.

Verdis I

The Verdis Il project is a continuation of Verdisvhich is currently under construction. The projedt comprise 63
units with an aggregate floor space of 6,378 Tine Company is considering commencing developrogtiiis project
during the fourth quarter of 2011.

Impressio Il

The Impressio Il project is continuation of Impiiesswhich is currently under construction. The jet will comprise
120 units with an aggregate floor space of 8,370 The Company is considering commencing developroéiis
project during the fourth quarter of 2011.
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D. Value of the preliminary sales agreements signeith clients for which revenue has not
been recognized in the Consolidated Statement ofmPrehensive Income for the year
ended 31 December 2010

The current sales (i.e. volume and value of thdirpieary sales agreements signed with the cliedts)not impact

Statement of Comprehensive Income account immdgistet only after final settlement of the contraetith the

customers (for more details see under “A” abovepage 25). The table below presents the value opthkminary

sales agreements executed with the Company’s slienparticular for units that have not been recoeph in the

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income:

Value of the preliminary sales

agreements signed with clients in Completed / expected
Project name Location thousands of PLN  completion of construction
Nautica I) Warsaw 6,680 Completed
Gemini® Warsaw 4,460 Completed
Imaginarium 1) Warsaw 687 Completed
Galileo® Pozna 9,775 Completed
Imaginarium I Warsaw 612 Completed
Constans I+If? Warsaw 9,621 Completed
Gardenid” Warsaw 8,793 Completed
Imaginarium 111 Warsaw 25,671 2011
Naturalis I Warsaw 2,498 2011
Nautica 11 Warsaw 1,884 2011
Sakura (7 Warsaw 6,682 2012
Verdis 1 Warsaw 3,610 2012
Impressio [ Wroctaw 702 2012
Total 1875

) For information on the completed projects see ‘Bass highlights during the year ended 31 Deceribéd — B. Results
breakdown by project” (pages 17 and 18).

) For information on current projects under constioat, see “Outlook for 2011 — B. Current projectsen construction” (pages
25-27).

E. Main risks and uncertainties during 2011

The economic situation in Europe and in Poland taeduncertainties in the housing market make it/ \eifficult to
predict results for 2011. The development of thésBaconomy, the banking industry and the consshieterest in
new housing projects are considered to be the gigsificant uncertainties for the financial yeademy 31 December
2011.
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Major shareholders

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as of the af publication of this annual report (8 Marabl2), the
following shareholders are entitled to exerciserdf of the voting rights at the General MeetingShfareholders in
the Company:

As of As of As of
8 March 2011 Increase in 31 December 2010 Increase in 31 December 2009
Number of shares / number of Number of shares / number Number of shares /
% of shares shares % of shares of shares % of shares
Shares issued 272,360,000 - 272,360,000 - BIEOB0
Major shareholders:
I.T.R. Dori B.V. 174,898,374 - 174,898,374 - 174,898,374
64.2% 64.2% 64.2%
GE Real Estate CE 41,800,000 - 41,800,000 - 41,800,000
Residential B.V. 15.3% 15.3% 15.3%
Amplico Otwarty Fundusz N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Emerytalny o o 0 o
Between 5%-10%. Between 5%-10%. Between 5%:-10
ING Otwarty Fundusz N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Emerytainy Between 5%-10%. Between 5%-10%. Between 5%:10

Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shalmsManagement Board members in the year ended
31 December 2010 and until the date of publicatiointhe report

Shares

The members of the Management Board did not indalig own or receive shares in the Company durimeygeriod
from 1 January 2010 until 8 March 2011, with theeption of Mr David Katz who indirectly holds 5.58bthe shares
and voting rights in a 50% shareholder of |.T.R iCB. and, as a result, thus indirectly holds &%.interest in the
Company. His indirect ownership in the Companyrit change during the period 1 January 2010 uritlb8ch 2011.

Shares options

The members of the Management Board did not indaligt receive rights to shares or options on shamethe
Company during the period from 1 January 2010 @tilarch 2011. Rights to shares that were grardaddividual
members of the Management Board before 1 Janual® ®dit which have not been exercised as of the dhate
publication of this report are as follows:

» Mr Andrzej Gutowski: a right to subscribe to a tatamber of 150,000 shares in the capital of thenany with a
nominal value of EUR 0.02 each, for an issue pegeal to PLN 5.75 per share, one third per yeathen
anniversary date of the date of 5 November 200Thi@e successive years, the optional exercisimg véll expire
on 5 November 2012.

Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shai®s Supervisory Board members in the year ended
31 December 2010 and until the date of publicatiohthe report

The members of the Supervisory Board did not imtliglly own any shares and/or rights to shares énGbmpany
during the period from 1 January 2010 until 8 MagfH. 1, with the exception of Mr Uri Dori who indatty holds
31.4% of the shares and voting rights in a 50%edt@der of I.T.R Dori B.V. and, as a result, thodiiectly holds a
10.1% interest in the Company. Mr Dori's indireatreership in the Company did not change during tegop 1
January 2010 until 8 March 2011.

30



Ronson Europe N.V.
Directors’ report

Additional information to the report (cont’d)

Changes in the Supervisory Board in the year endddDecember 2010 and until the date of publication
of the report

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders hel® &pril 2010 adopted a resolution re-appointing Wi Dori as
Supervisory Director of the Company. His new terith &pire in April 2014.

Indemnity for Management Board members and SupeovisBoard members

The Articles of Association of the Company providean indemnification for all directors of the Cpany (article 42).
The members of the Supervisory Board and Managefeatd shall be reimbursed for (i) all reasonalists of
conducting a defence against claims based on adtslures to act in the exercise of their dutiég,any damages or
fines payable by them as a result of an act ourfito act in the exercise of their duties, anijl {@asonable costs of
appearing in other legal proceedings in which they involved as current or former directors of @@mpany. No
indemnification will be given to any director if itas been determined by a judgment which is nodoigbject to
appeal, that the act or failure to act is char@adras wilful misconduct or gross negligence. Régms to award the
indemnification are to be disclosed in the Annuatdunts of the Company. Adoption of the Annual Agats will be
considered to be approval of such resolutions,ssrtlee General Meeting of Shareholders decideswite

Overview of the results during the three months edd31 December 2010

The Company’s net income for the three months erfeddecember 2010 was PLN 9,745 thousand and can be
summarized as follows:

For the three months ended 31 December 2010 2009

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) (UnaUdited) (UnaUdited)

Revenue 68,318 38,358
Cost of sales (51,275) (25,770)
Gross profit 17,043 12,588
Changes in fair value of investment property - 5,602
Selling and marketing expenses (2,181) (1,114)
Administrative expenses (4,553) (4,208)
Other expenses (2,718) (1,821)
Other income 33 671
Result from operating activities 7,624 11,718
Finance income 902 467
Finance expense (200) (1,282)
Net finance income/(expense) 702 (815)
Profit before taxation 8,326 10,903
Income tax (benefit)/expense 1,419 (2,180)
Profit for the period 9,745 8,723
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Other

As of 31 December 2010, the Company has issuecgtess for bank loans granted to subsidiaries atimguto a total
of PLN 37,193 thousand.

As of 31 December 2010, the Group has no litigatiams or liabilities that in total exceed 10%tloé Group’s equity.

The following net movements in the Group’s mainyismns took place during the year ended 31 Dece@d£0:
- adecrease in the provision for deferred tax litded of PLN 1,090 thousand.
- an increase in the provision for expected costdavielopment of certain plots of land owned by theup
according to the conditions imposed by local autissrof PLN 3,170 thousand.

Aurora

In May 2009, the Company entered into a settleragréement with the seller of a land plot in Pazfmoject Aurora),
which concluded the dispute between the parties steated in September 2008. The seller has coafirthat the
original agreement related to acquisition of laag bxpired and has committed to pay back the aévaagment (PLN
12.4 million) upon satisfaction of certain conditio While the Company decided to enter into thismmmmise
agreement despite the fact that the ManagementBeas confident about the Company’s ultimate sucaeany court
proceeding. The Management Board was of the opitiahentering into a court proceeding would noeketbs be long,
expensive and complicated. Based on the comproagseement reached, the parties agreed to a reductithe

repayment to a final settlement of PLN 9.0 milliplus statutory interest accrued since 1 Augus©20@ the unpaid
amount) if repaid by end of April 2010. Notwithstlmg the said compromise agreement, the Managenfetite

Company has assessed chances of the Seller tgamalevant financial resources and to finalizesitlement within
agreed timeframe as unlikely and decided to natg®d with any write-off.

On 30 April 2010, the seller repaid the full PLND 9nillion plus PLN 0.9 million of interest after v all settlements
between the Company and the seller were cleareda Assult of the above described settlement, thempaoy
recognized a write-down expense for the abandongéqi to the amount of PLN 2.5 million. This wridewn expense
is included in the Condensed Consolidated Stateofedbmprehensive Income in “Other expenses”.

Statement relating to the system of internal cortro

In line with best practice provision I1.1.4 of tHeutch Code and bearing in mind the recommendatmnghe
Monitoring Committee Corporate Governance Code,Gbenpany issues a declaration about the effectssené the
system of internal control of the processes on ktte financial reporting is based.

In 2010, the Management Board assessed the effeetg of the system of internal controls for finaneeporting.
During the investigation on which this assessmeag hased, no shortcomings were identified that hpghsibly have
a material impact on the financial reporting. Oa Hasis of the results of the above assessmenhantsk analyses
that were carried out at the Company within thenfsork of governance and compliance, the ManageBeaitd is of
the opinion - after consulting with the Audit Contteé and with the approval of the Supervisory Boattat the
system of internal controls provides a reasonabtgek of certainty that the financial reportingtedms no inaccuracies
of material importance. An inherent element in meople and organisations work together in a dynawaidd is that
systems of internal control cannot provide an alieallegree (though they can provide a reasonableejeof certainty
as regards the prevention of material inaccurdni#ise financial reporting and the prevention afdes and fraud.

In our view the system of internal controls, foalis® the financial reporting, functioned effectivelver the past year.
There are no indications that the system of inferaatrols will not function effectively in 2011.
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Directors Representation statement

In conjunction with the EU Transparency Directive iacorporated in Chapter 5.3 of the Dutch Findnblarkets
Supervision Act\{Vet op het financieel toezi¢tihe Management Board therefore confirms to the beits knowledge
that:

- the Annual Financial Statements for the year er8le®ecember 2010 give a true and fair view of theets,
liabilities, financial position and profits and ®ef the Company and its subsidiaries,

- the additional management information disclosedhi@ Annual Report gives a true and fair view of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 80dQhe state affairs during the financial yeawtoch
the report relates, and

- the annual report describes the principal riskfgcthe Company. These are described in detail im th
Director’s Report.

Representation concerning election of the Compangigitor

The Management Board confirms that the Companyttauhas been elected according to applicablesrated the
audit firm and its registered accountants engagetié audit of the financial statements of Ronsarope N.V. meet
the objectives to present an objective and indepeneport, the agreement with the auditors wasesigon the 29 of

April 2010. For information about agreed-upon eragagnts of the Company’s auditor see note 15 ofChmpany
Financial Statements.

Financial risk management, objectives and policies

For information on the financial risk managemeritjeotives and policies see note 33 of the Cons@di&inancial
Statements.

The Management Board

Shraga Weisman Tomasz tapiski Andrzej Gutowski
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Sales and Marketing Director
Amos Weltsch David Katz Karol Pilniewicz

Rotterdam, 8 March 2011
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To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders@igon Europe N.V.

AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial stat¢ésr2010 of Ronson Europe N.V., Rotterdam as seboytages 36 to
98. The financial statements consist of the codatdd financial statements and the company finaistéements. The
consolidated financial statements comprise the aatsed statement of financial position as at 3@éc&nber 2010,
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomesadiolated statement of changes in equity and cateset statement of
cash flow for the year then ended and notes, caimgra. summary of significant accounting policied ather explanatory
notes. The company financial statements comprisetimpany statement of financial position as ab8tember 2010, the
company income statement for the year then endeédh&nnotes.

Management's responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation anid gresentation of the financial statements inoedance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as ttbpy the European Union and with Part 9 of Boa the Netherlands
Civil Code, and for the preparation of the direaoeport in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of fhutch Civil Code.
Furthermore management is responsible for suchnialteontrol as it determines is necessary to entitd preparation of
the financial statements that are free from mdteriastatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢héieancial statements based on our audit. We ameduour audit in
accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch 8&mds on Auditing. This requires that we comply hwéthical

requirements and plan and perform the audit toioltmsonable assurance whether the financialnséatts are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtairdia evidence about the amounts and disclosurethenfinancial
statements. The procedures selected depend orudlieras judgment, including the assessment of ribks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whethgr @ fraud or error. In making those risk assesssmehe auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entitgteparation and fair presentation of the finanstatements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate ircitttemstances, but not for the purpose of expngsah opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Aodit also includes evaluating the appropriatenéssccounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimatés by management, as well as evaluating thelbysesentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisour audit opinion.
Opinion with respect to the consolidated financiaktatements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaggive a true and fair view of the financial pmsitof Ronson Europe
N.V. as at 31 December 2010, and of its resultinchash flows for the year then ended in accordavith International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by thefean Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Nd#rads Civil Code.

Opinion with respect to the company financial statments

In our opinion, the company financial statement&d@ true and fair view of the financial positiohRonson Europe N.V.
as at 31 December 2010, its result for the year #meled in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 ofdbé&ch Civil Code.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under 2:393 sphrbat e and f of the Dutch Civil Code, we hawedeficiencies to
report as a result of our examination whether thectbr's board report, to the extent we can asdess been prepared in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this Code, @hdther the information as required under Secti@92sub 1 at b-h has
been annexed. Further we report that the direchwé&sd report, to the extent we can assess, isstenswith the financial
statements as required by Section 2:391 sub 4edbthich Civil Code.

Amsterdam, 8 March 2011

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

Signed by J.H. de Prie
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Revenue 6 241,265 116,309
Cost of sales 7 (178,544) (76,115)
Gross profit 62,721 40,194
Changes in fair value of investment property 16 - 5,602
Selling and marketing expenses 8 (7,397) (3,331)
Administrative expenses 9 (16,129) (14,172)
Other expenses 11 (6,683) (2,563)
Other income 12 610 2,117
Result from operating activities 33,122 27,847
Finance income 13 2,411 851
Finance expense 13 (428) (2,710)
Net finance income/(expense) 1,983 (1,859)
Profit before taxation 35,105 25,988
Income tax expense 14 (14) (4,954)
Profit for the year 35,091 21,034
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 35,091 21,034
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) 24 272,360,000 235,672,238
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (dijuted 24 272,999,333 236,311,571
Net earnings per share

In Polish Zlotys (PLN)

basic 24 0.129 0.089
diluted 24 0.129 0.089

The notes on pages 40 to 88 are an integral plttt@se consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Assets

Property and equipment 15 8,371 1,319
Investment property 16 8,740 8,740
Loans granted to third parties 17 544 -

Deferred tax assets 18 3,444 3,891
Total non-current assets 21,099 13,950
Inventory 19 543,529 646,253
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 20 13,280 19,884
Income tax receivable 649 190

Short-term bank deposits - collateralized 21 1,585 5,070
Cash and cash equivalents 22 94,888 58,044
Total current assets 653,931 729,441
Total assets 675,030 743,391
Equity

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 20,762 20,762
Share premium 282,873 282,873
Retained earnings 113,742 78,583
Total shareholders’ equity 23 417,377 382,218
Liabilities

Loans from related parties 25 - 52,948

Secured bank loans 25 49,213 54,346
Loans from third parties 25 4,032 -

Deferred tax liability 18 5,331 6,421
Total non-current liabilities 58,576 113,715
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses 26 18,953 27,729
Loans from related parties 25 53,218 7,381
Secured bank loans 25 74,701 134,332
Loans from third parties 25 1,311 -

Advances received 27 44,347 73,367
Income tax payable 43 1,563

Provisions 28 6,504 3,086
Total current liabilities 199,077 247,458
Total liabilities 257,653 361,173
Total equity and liabilities 675,030 743,391

The notes on pages 40 to 88 are an integral patthese consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 Decemp@09:

Share Share Retained Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) capital premium earnings equity
Balance at 1 January 2009 16,953 215,105 57,425 483
Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 - - 21,034 21,034
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 21,034 21,034
Issue of new sharés 3,809 67,768 - 71,577
Share-based payments (note 23 C) - - 124 124
Balance at 31 December 2009 20,762 282,873 78,583 82,318
Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 - - 35,091 35,091
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 35,091 35,091
Share-based payments (note 23 C) - - 68 68
Balance at 31 December 2010 20,762 282,873 113,742417,377

@ This represents the proceeds above par from th#93333 new shares, issued on 22 October 2009.n€he

proceeds from the new shares issued on 22 Octd@l @mounted to PLN 71,577 thousand, after a dixtuof
PLN 1,052 thousand representing the total costtljyrattributable to the new shares issued.

The notes on pages 40 to 88 are an integral patthese consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
Profit for the period 35,091 21,034

Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period &t nash used in
operating activities:

Depreciation 9,15 452 379
Increase in the value of investment property 16 - (5,602)

Finance expense 13 428 2,710
Finance income 13 (2,411) (851)
Profit on sale of property and equipment 12 9) (92)

Write-down of inventory 19 2,188 -

Share-based payments expense 23 68 124
Income tax benefit expense 14 14 4,954
Subtotal 35,821 22,656
Decrease/(increase) in inventory 35 122,086  (52,001)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivabléprepayments 35 7,070 11,579
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payableaconded expenses 35 (6,302) 1,397
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 28 3,418 (58)
Increase/(decrease) in advances received (29,020) 19,033
Subtotal 133,073 2,606
Interest paid (20,644) (16,487)
Interest received 2,483 954
Income tax paid (2,577) (2,000)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 112,335 (14,927)

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

Acquisition of property and equipment 15 (1,701) (356)
Acquisition of investment property (payment fomténation of finance

lease contract) (2,500) -
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 3,485 27
Investment in joint venture, net of cash acquired 32 (7,406) -
Loans granted to third parties (544) -
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 9 449
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (8,657) 66

Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Proceeds from new shares issued 23 - 72,629
Costs directly attributed to the new shares issued 23 - (1,052)

Proceeds from bank loans, net of bank charges 2,942 22,391
Repayment of bank loans (69,031) (60,386)
Repayment of loans received from third parties (745) -

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (66,834) 33,582
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 36,844 18,721
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 58,044 39,323
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 22 94,888 58,044

The notes on pages 40 to 88 are an integral patti@$e consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

(@)

(b)

Background and business of the Company

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’), a Dutch pulslienpany with its statutory seat in Rotterdam, the
Netherlands, was incorporated on 18 June 2007.r&bistered office is located at Weena 210-212,
Rotterdam, the Netherlands. The Company (togetftérits Polish subsidiaries ‘the Group’), is actine
the development and sale of units, primarily apartts, in multi-family residential real-estate pifeto
individual customers in Poland.

The shares of the Company are traded on the WaBsaek Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31
December 2010, 64.2% of the outstanding sharekeddeby I.T.R. Dori B.V. (‘ITR Dori’), 15.3% of the
outstanding shares are held by GE Real Estate Gidétdgial B.V. (‘GE Real Estate’) whereas the
remaining 20.5% of the outstanding shares are bgldther investors including Amplico Otwarty
Fundusz Emerytalny and ING Otwarty Fundusz Emenyt&lach holding between 5% and 10% of the
outstanding shares.

A list of the companies from which the financiadta are included in these Consolidated Financial
Statements and the extent of ownership and coateopresented in Note 1(b).

The details of the Polish companies whose finarstatements have been included in these Consdlidate
Financial Statements, the year of incorporation #mel percentage of ownership and voting rights

directly held or indirectly by the Company as at B&cember 2010 are presented below and on the
following page.

The projects managed by the companies are in \&gtages of development ranging from being in the
process of acquiring land for development to prigj@dich are completed or near completion.

Share of ownership &

Year of voting rights
Entity name incorporation at the end of
201( 200¢
a. held directly by the Company :
1. Ronson Development Management Sp. z 0.0. 1999 100.0% 100.0%
2. Ronson Development 2000 Sp. z 0.0. 2000 100.0% 100.0%
3. Ronson Development Warsaw Sp. z 0.0. 2000 100.0% 100.0%
4. Ronson Development Investments Sp. z o.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
5. Ronson Development Metropol Sp. z o.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
6. Ronson Development Properties Sp. z 0.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
7. Ronson Development Apartments Sp. z 0.0. 2003 100.0% 100.0%
8. Ronson Development Residential Sp. z 0.0. 2003 100.0% 100.0%
9. Ronson Development Enterprise Sp. z 0.0. 2004 100.0% 100.0%
10. Ronson Development Company Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
11. Ronson Development Creations Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
12. Ronson Development Buildings Sp. z o0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
13. Ronson Development Structure Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
14. Ronson Development Pozn&p. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
15. Ronson Development Innovation Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
16. Ronson Development Wroctaw Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
17. Ronson Development Capital Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
18. EEE Development Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
19. Ronson Development Habitat Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
20. Ronson Development Sp. z o.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
21. Ronson Development Construction Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
22. Ronson Development City Sp. z 0.0. (no activitie3laDecember 2010) 2006  100.0% 100.0%
23. Ronson Development Village Sp. z d®. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
24. Ronson Development Conception Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
25. Ronson Development Architecture Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
26. Ronson Development Skyline Sp. z 4. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
27. Ronson Development Continental Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%

(1) The Company has the power to govern the financidl @perating policies of this entity and to obtdenefits from its activities,
whereas Kancelaria Radcy Prawnego Jarostaw Zubizyokis the legal title to the shares of this entit
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1. Background and business of the Company (cont'd)

Share of ownership &

Year of voting rights

Entity name incorporation at the end of

201C 200¢
28. Ronson Development Universal Sp. z &b. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
29. Ronson Development Retreat Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
30. Ronson Development South Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
31. Ronson Development West Sp. z &b. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
32. Ronson Development East Sp. z 0.0. (no activiti&d &ecember 2010) 2007  100.0% 100.0%
33. Ronson Development North Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
34. Ronson Development Providence Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
35. Ronson Development Destiny Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
36. Ronson Development Millenium Sp. z o.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
37. Ronson Development Finco Sp. z 0.0. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
38. Ronson Development Nautica Sp. z 0.0. (no acta/aie31 December 2010) 2010 100.0% n.a.
39. Ronson Development Gemini Sp. z 0.0. (no activiie31 December 2010) 2010 100.0% n.a.
40. Ronson Development Apartments 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% n.a.
41. Ronson Development 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% n.a.
42. Ronson Development Retreat 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% n.a.
43. Ronson Development Enterprise 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% n.a.
44. Ronson Development Wroctaw 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% n.a.
45. Ronson Development EEE 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% n.a.
46. Ronson Development Nautica 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% n.a.
47. Ronson Development Gemini 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% n.a.
48. Ronson Development Skyline 2010 Sp. z 0.0. (nwities at 31 December 2010) 2010 100.0% n.a.
b.  held indirectly by the Company :
49. AGRT Sp. zo.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
50. Ronson Development Community Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
51. Ronson Development Estate Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
52. Ronson Development Home Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
53. Ronson Development Horizon Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
54. Ronson Development Landscape Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
55. Ronson Development Town Sp.k. (no activities ab&tember 2010) 2007 100.0% 100.0%
56. Ronson Development Eclipse Sp.k. (no activitie3labecember 2010) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
57. Ronson Development Magellan Sp.k. (no activitie3laDecember 2010) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
58. Ronson Development Monet Sp.k. (no activities abatember 2010) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
59. Ronson Development Orion Sp.k. (no activities aD&tember 2010) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
60. Ronson Development Osiedle Hrabskie Sp.k. (noisietivat 31 December 2010) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
61. Ronson Development Plejada Sp.k. (no activiti@ldbecember 2010) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
62. Ronson Development Renoir Sp.k. (no activitieslabacember 2010) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
63. Ronson Development Renaissance Sp.k. (no actieitidd December 2010) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
64. Ronson Development Tamka Sp.k. (no activities @b8tember 2010) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
65. Ronson Development Copernicus Sp.k. (no activéte®l December 2010) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
66. Landex Sp.z 0.¢? 2010 57.8% n.a

(1) The Company has the power to govern the financidl @perating policies of this entity and to obtdenefits from its activities,
whereas Kancelaria Radcy Prawnego Jarostaw Zubidyokis the legal title to the shares of this entit
(2) On 23 December 2010, the Group acquired 57.8%eethuity in Landex Sp. z 0.0. For additional infiation see notes 32 and 36.
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2.

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Basis of preparation and measurement

Basis of preparation and statement of compliaze

These Consolidated Financial Statements have jegrared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ('IFRBig Company Financial Statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with article 3&2!8 Netherlands Civil Code.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were awhorby the Boards of Directors of Ronson Europe
N.V. on 8 March 2011.

These Consolidated Financial statements have fregared on the assumption that the Group is agoin
concern, meaning it will continue in operation fbe foreseeable future and will be able to reaizsets
and discharge liabilities in the normal courset®biperations.

Basis of measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements have beepaped on the historical cost basis, except for
investment property which was measured at fair evahe methods used to measure fair values for
disclosure purposes in the notes to the Consotidatgancial Statements are discussed further ia 28t

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of eatity in the Group are measured using the cuyrefc
the primary economic environment in which the gntiperates (the ‘functional currency’) being Polish
Zloty (‘PLN’). The Consolidated Financial Statemeiatre presented in thousands of Polish Zloty which
is the parent company functional and presentativreacy. Although the Company is Dutch Company, it
operates mainly in Poland.

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requiresnagement to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accagntpolicies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assetd kabilities at the date of the financial statemseand the
reported amounts of income and expenses duringeherted period. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are revieadan ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in whicheliemate is revised.
In particular, information about significant areafsestimation, uncertainty and critical judgemeints
applying accounting policies that have the mosnifitant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements, are described in the follgwiotes:

Note 16 — investment property

Note 18 — utilization of tax losses

Note 19 - inventory

Note 20 — trade and other receivables and prepagmen

Note 28 — provisions

Note 30 — commitments and contingencies
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2.

(e)

(f)

Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company

Control exists when the Company has the power temgothe financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activitizsassessing control, potential voting rightg fr@sently
are exercisable are taken into account. The fimhrstatements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the datedbatrol commences until the date that controkesa

Jointly controlled entities are those enterprisesronvhose activities the Company has joint control,
established by contractual agreements. The ComgetidFinancial Statements include the Company’s
proportionate share of the enterprises’ assetsilitias, revenues and expenses with items of simil
nature on a line-by-line basis, from the date bigit control commences until the date that joiobtzol
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactionsamaydinrealized gains and losses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated during constibda

The financial statements of subsidiaries are pexpdor the same period as the financial statemént o
parent. The Group entities keep books of accoumndE¢ordance with accounting policies specifietha
Accounting Act dated 29 September 1994 (‘the ActioignAct’) with subsequent amendments and the
regulations issued based on that Act (all togettatish Accounting Standards’). Ronson Europe N.V.
keeps the books of accounts in accordance withusmticw policies required by Dutch law. These
consolidated financial statements include a nunabedjustments not included in the books of account
of the Group entities, which were made in ordebtimg the financial statements of those entities to
conformity with IFRSs.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosuse

The accounting policies adopted are consistent Witiee of the previous financial year except as
follows. The Group has adopted the following new amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations as of 1
January 2010 insofar endorsed by the EU as ofdteaf approval of these financial statements:

« IFRS 2Share-based payment: Group Cash-settled Share-tRagthent Transactionsapplicable to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after Auday 2010. The standard has been amended to
clarify the accounting for group cash-settled shmsed payment transactions. This amendment
supersedes IFRIC 8 and IFRIC 11. The adoption isfdmendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

« IFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised) and IAS 8is8lidated and Separate Financial Statements
(amended) — applicable to annual reporting peribeginning on or after 1 July 2009. IFRS 3
(revised) introduces significant changes in theoanting for business combinations occurring after
this date. Changes affect the valuation of non+adlitig interest, the accounting for transactiostsp
the initial recognition and subsequent measurenoénd contingent consideration, and business
combinations achieved in stages. The adoption isfdmendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group. 123 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements (amendeaquires that a change in the ownership intereatsubsidiary (without loss of
control) is accounted for as a transaction with engnin their capacity as owners. Therefore, such
transactions will no longer give rise to goodwilirrwill it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermptiee
amended standard changes the accounting for loss#sed by the subsidiary as well as the loss of
control of a subsidiaryThe adoption of thimmendment did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

« |AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremétigible Hedged Items applicable to
annual reporting periods beginning on or afterl¥ 2009. The amendment addresses the designation
of a one-sided risk in a hedged item, and the design of inflation as a hedged risk or portion in
particular situations. The adoption of this amendintd not have an impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.
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2.

Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)

() Changes in accounting policies and disclosus€cont’d)

IFRIC 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Ownersapplicable to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009. This interprietat provides guidance on accounting for
arrangements whereby an entity distributes non-easkts to shareholders either as a distribution of
reserves or as dividends. The interpretation ditl heove any effect on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Improvements to IFRSs (issued May 2008) — in Ma@&fthe IFRS Board issued its first omnibus of
amendments to its standards. The following amentsiteave been applied from 1 January 2010:

- IFRS 5 Nonrcurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued @pens clarifies when a
subsidiary is classified as held for sale, allassets and liabilities are classified as held &be,s
even when the entity remains a non-controllingrede after the sale transaction. The amendment
is applied prospectively and did not have any immacthe financial position or performance of
the Group.

Improvements to IFRSs (issued April 2009) — in ARAO9 the IFRS Board issued its second omnibus
of amendments to its standards, primarily with ewito removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. There are separate transitional provisfongach standard.

- IFRS 8Operating Segmentglarifies that segment assets and liabilitiesdnesly be reported
when those assets and liabilities are included @asures that are used by the chief operating
decision maker. As the Company’s chief operatingjsien maker does review segment assets and
liabilities, the Company has continued to disclttgs information in Note 5.

- IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flowexplicitly states that only expenditure that fesin recognising
an asset can be classified as a cash flow inveattigties

- |IAS 17 LeasesThe amendment clarifies that the classificatiotaafl and buildings as being held
under finance or operating lease should be sepa@dsessed with a reminder that when land is
land leased, land had an indefinite economic life.

- |IAS 36 Impairment of Assets: The amendment larifigat the largest unit permitted for allocation
of goodwill, acquired in a business combinationthie operating segment as defined in IFRS 8
before aggregation for reporting purposes. The a@memt did not have any effect on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

- IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measwent: The amendment clarifies that a
prepayment option is considered closely relatethéohost contract when the exercise price of a
prepayment option reimburses the lender up to gpgaximate present value of lost interest for
the remaining term of the host contract. The amemdnclarifies that the scope exemption for
contracts between an acquirer and a vendor in imdmss combination to buy or sell an acquire at
future date, applies only to binding forward cootsa and not derivative contracts where further
actions by either party are still to be taken. @heendment did not have any effect on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

The changes in the following standards did not hawe impact on the accounting policies, the finahci
position or performance of the Company:

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Ditoored Operations
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

IAS 38 Intangible Assets

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 16 Hedge of a Net Investment in a Foreigre@pon

The Group has not early adopted any other standaatpretation or amendment that was issued but is
not yet effective.
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3.

(@)
(i)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have beqiiexp consistently in all periods presented in ¢hes
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translatetthe respective functional currencies of Groufities
at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of #ms#éctions using:

the purchase or selling rate of the bank whoseicEsare used by the Group — in case of foreign
currency sales or purchase transactions, as wehéncase as of the debt or liability payment
transactions;

the average rate specified for a given currencyhieyNational Bank of Poland as on the transaction
date, unless a customs declaration or other bindiimgment indicates another rate — in case of other
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in ifprecurrencies are retranslated at the functional
currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the répprtlate. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency temslated using the exchange rates as at the afaies
initial transactions.

Revenue
Revenue from operations includes:

Revenue from the sale of residential units

Revenues from the sale of residential units aregeized upon transfer to the buyer of the significa
risks and rewards of ownership of the residentrdt (i.e. upon signing of the protocol of technical
acceptance and transfer of the key to the resmlemtit), after a valid building occupancy permitsh
been obtained by the Group.

Advances received related to pre-sales of resiglamits, which represent deferred income, arerdede
when they do not meet the criteria to be recognaedevenue. When they subsequently meet these
criteria, they are recognised as revenue.

Revenue on finance leases

Finance lease income is recognized based on thgtgrmethod under which total finance lease irgere
income and the excess of scheduled lease paymeatsttee cost of the related assets is deferred and
amortized as income over the lease term by empiowia effective interest rate that provides a conist
periodic rate of return on the net investment mldase.

Revenue on operating leases

Payments received under operating leases are rigedgn the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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3.

()

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments of the Grougmprise loans granted, trade and other receivables
cash and cash equivalents, deposits, loans andviiags, and trade and other payables. All financial
assets are recognised initially at fair value piushe case of investments not at fair value tghoprofit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

A financial instrument is recognized if the Grobpcomes a party to the contractual provisions ef th
instrument. Financial assets are derecognizeceif@roup’s contractual rights to the cash flows fribva
financial assets expire or if the Group transfeesfinancial asset to another party without retajréontrol

or substantially all risks and rewards of the asBegular way purchases and sales of financiatsasse
accounted for at trade date, i.e. the date thaGtbep commits itself to purchase or sell the as3rtincial
liabilities are derecognized if the Group’s obligas specified in the contract expire, or are disgld or
cancelled.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand @md &n integral part of the Group’s cash management
are included as a component of cash and cash déepiisdor the purpose of the statement of cashslow

Non-derivative financial instruments of the Group elassified into one of the following categories:

Category Statement of financial position item Measurement
Held for trading Cash and cash equivalent Valire- adjusted to
income statements
Loans and receivables Short-term deposits Apemttcosts
Trade and other receivables Amortized costs
Other financial liabilities Loans from related fes Amortized costs

Trade and other payables and accrued expenses  orti2ed costs

Secured bank loans Amortized costs

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finangsalets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These are cladsé® current assets, provided their maturity dags n
exceed 12 months after the reporting date. Loadsraceivables with maturities exceeding 12 months
from the reporting date are classified under nomeru assets. After initial measurement, loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortized gsing the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment. Gains and losses aregmized in the statement of comprehensive income
when the loans and receivables are derecognizeithpaired, as well as, through the amortization
process.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are measured at amedi cost using the effective interest method amd ar
valued at amortized cost.
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3.

(d)
(D

(ii)

(e)
(i)

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured sitlees accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directlyaitable to the acquisition of the asset. The coset-
constructed assets includes the cost of matenmlsdaect labor, any other costs directly attritlgato
bringing the asset to a working condition for it¢ehded use, and the costs of dismantling and remgov
the items and restoring the site on which theylacated. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitatizas part of that equipment.

When significant parts of property, plant and equént are required to be replaced in intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual asseitsspecific useful lives and depreciation, respetyi
Likewise, when a major inspection is performedgist is recognised in the carrying amount of tlaatp
and equipment as a replacement if the recognitittaria are satisfied. All other repair and mairgtece
costs are recognised in the statement of comprafeeimeome as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-lineibawer the estimated useful life of each compomént
an item of property and equipment.

The estimated useful life of property and equiptndapending on the class of asset, ranges fro73 t
years. Leased assets are depreciated over thersbbthe lease term and their useful lives. Landot
depreciated.

When parts of an item of property and equipmenehaifferent useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property gogment.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residulesaare reassessed at the reporting date, ansiteutju
prospectively since the beginning of the yearprapriate.

Leases

Finance leases — lessee accounting

Leases in which the Group assumes substantidlthekisks and rewards of ownership are classified
finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the lehasset is measured at an amount equal to the loiwer
its fair value and the present value of the mininlease payments.

47



Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.

(e)
(ii)

(f)

(9)

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Leases (cont’d)

Operating leases — lessor accounting

The Group is the lessor of a property to a thiatty under a operating lease agreement. The
determination of whether an arrangement is, or ansf a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date: whether fulfilmdrthe arrangement is dependent on the use of afispec
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys aagighe the asset.

Leases where the Group does not transfer substgratil the risks and benefits of ownership of #sset

are classified as operating leases. Initial dioests incurred in negotiating an operating leaseadded

to the carrying amount of the leased asset andynémed over the lease term on the same basestat ren
income. Contingent rents are recognised as reviarthe period in which they are earned.

Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at,dosluding transaction costs. Subsequently ttahi
recognition, investment properties are stated &t Vfalue, which reflects market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains or losses arising from charigethe fair values of investment properties are
included in the statement of comprehensive incanthe period in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised when ditisgr have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and nture economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. The difference between the net disposatgeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive indartie period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment propanty when there is a change in use. For a trarfisier
investment property to owner occupied property,deemed cost for subsequently accounting is the fai
value at the date of change in use. If owner o@xligroperty becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with policy stated under property, plant and
equipment up to the date of change in use.

Inventories of residential units
Inventories consist of multi-family residential testate projects to individual customers.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost atdealizable value. The cost of inventories inekud
expenditure incurred relating to the constructiba project. Net realizable value is the estimateling
price in the ordinary course of business, les®thignated costs of completion and selling expenses.
Costs relating to the construction of a projeetiacluded in inventories of residential unitdalws:

e costs incurred relating to projects or a phase pfaect which are not available for sale (work in

progress),
e costs incurred relating to units unsold associati¢ld a project.

Project construction costs include:

a) land or leasehold rights for land,

b) construction costs paid to subcontractors for thestruction of residential units,

¢) planning and design costs,

d) perpetual usufruct fees and real estate taxesrgataiuring the period of construction,

e) borrowing costs to the extent they are directlyitaitable to the development of the project (see
accounting policy (1)),

f) professional fees attributable to the developméttie project,

g) construction overheads and other directly relatesisc

Inventory is recognised as a cost of sales in taement of comprehensive income when the sale of
residential units is recognised.
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(h)
(i)
(i)

(ii)

()
(i)

(ii)

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Trade and other receivables and prepayment
Trade and other receivables are stated at amoitizgtdess impairment losses.

Equity

Share capital

Share capital includes the proceeds received ftmrissue of ordinary shares on the nominal vatue i
exchange for cash.

Share premium

Share premium includes the excess of proceed&/eecrom the issue of shares over the nominalevalu
of shares.

Shares issuance costs are deducted from shar@prerat of any related income tax benefits.

Impairment
Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impairembjective evidence indicates that one or more eveate
had a negative effect on the estimated future flagls of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial assetasured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and thesgme value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tabffor impairment on an individual basis. The rerma
financial assets are assessed collectively in grthgs share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognized in the stetenof comprehensive income.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal barrelated objectively to an event occurring affter
impairment loss was recognized. For financial assaeasured at amortized cost the reversal is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-finan@akets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impeint. If any such indication exists then the asset’
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carryimgaaunt of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greates value in use and its fair value less costsdll. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future dagls fare discounted to present value using a pre-ta
discount rate that reflects current market assestsnoéd the time value of money and the risks sjpetif
the asset.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periodsamsessed at each reporting date for any indicatiais
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. Aniimpat loss is reversed if there has been a change
the estimates used to determine the recoverable@mén impairment loss is reversed only to theeakt
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceeddthrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impaimhéss had been recognized.
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3.

(k)

o

(m)

(n)

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of atpagent, the Group has a present legal or constauct
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and ipiobable that an outflow of economic benefitd ha
required to settle the obligation. Provisions agtedmined by discounting the expected future chstasf
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current marketssssents of the time value of money and the risksifip
to the liability.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the intany of properties which necessarily take a suligthn
period of time to get ready for their intended usesale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
respective assets. All other borrowing costs apepsed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest calculated using thecttffe interest method that an entity incurs in ction
with the borrowing of funds.

The interest capitalised is calculated using theu@'s weighted average cost of borrowings after
adjusting for borrowings associated with specifeavelopments. Where borrowings are associated with
specific developments, the amount capitalised aqtii@ gross interest incurred on those borrowiags |
any investment income arising on their temporaryestment. Interest is capitalised as from the
commencement of the development work until the déteompletion. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended if there are prolonged peritedsdevelopment activity is interrupted.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deféasedCurrent tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates edamtesubstantively enacted at the reporting date aay
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previowsieCurrent tax expense is calculated accordingxto
regulations in effect in the jurisdiction in whittie individual companies are domiciled.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balastoeet method, for all temporary differences agisin
between the tax bases of assets and liabilitiegtaidcarrying amounts for financial reporting paoses,
and for tax losses carried forward, except forithigal recognition of assets or liabilities in @hsaction
that is not a business combination and that affeetther accounting nor taxable profit. Deferrexl i&
measured at the tax rates that are expected tpiec to the temporary differences when they reser
based on the laws that have been enacted or stibstprenacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to theregxhat it is probable that future taxable psofitill be

available against which the asset can be utilieeach reporting date deferred tax assets areceeldio

the extent that it is no longer probable that #lated tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tagets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legallgferceable right exists to set off current tax &ssgainst
current income tax liabilities and the deferrecetarelate to the same taxable entity and the saxagidn

authority.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earningsshare (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The
computations of the basic earnings per share degndimed on the basis of the weighted average numbe
of shares outstanding during the year. The dil@achings per share are determined by adjusting the
statement of comprehensive income and the weightethge number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary skay which comprise share options granted and rights
obtain shares by employees.

50



Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.

(0)

(9)

(a)

(r)

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Share options granted

The Group operates a share-based incentive plenfair value of share options granted to managemen

and other employees as at the grant date is rese@jris an employee expense, with a corresponding
increase in equity recognised in retained earniogsr the period during which the employees become

unconditionally entitled to the options. The amotetognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect th

actual number of share options that vest.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement afdiabpositions comprise cash at banks and on hadd
short-term deposits with an original maturity ofe months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement ftasls, cash and cash equivalents consist of cadh a
short-term deposits as defined above, net of mudétg bank overdrafts.

Employee benefits
Obligations for contributions to defined contrilut pension plans are recognised as an expensein t
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

The Company's subsidiaries in Poland are requireder applicable regulations, to pay, on a monthly
basis, social security contributions for the emplkes/ future pension benefits. These benefits, diotpr

to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, are state plans amd characterised as defined contribution plans.
Therefore, the Company's subsidiaries have no legalconstructive obligation to pay future
pension benefits and their obligation is limitecoyyment of contributions as they fall due.

Jointly controlled entities

The Group has an interest in a joint venture whsch jointly controlled entity, whereby the verdrg
have a contractual arrangement that establishat gontrol over the economic activities of the sti
The Group recognises its interest in the joint uemiusing the proportionate consolidation methdie T
Group combines its proportionate share of eachefksets, liabilities, income and expenses ojfoihe
venture with similar items, line by line, in itsresplidated financial statements. The financialestents

of the joint venture are prepared for the same ntaggpperiod as the parent company. Adjustments are
made where necessary to bring the accounting psliailine with those of the Group.

Adjustments are made in the Group’s consolidatehtial statements to eliminate the Group’s sloére
intragroup balances, income and expenses and isa@alains and losses on transactions between the
Group and its jointly controlled entity. Losses twansactions are recognised immediately if the loss
provides evidence of a reduction in the net reblesaalue of current assets or an impairment [dbs.
joint venture is proportionately consolidated untie date on which the Group ceases to have joint
control over the joint venture.

Upon loss of joint control and provided the form@int control entity does not become a subsidiary
associate, the Group measures and recognisesigniag investment at its fair value. Any differenc
between the carrying amount of the former jointtoalted entity upon loss of joint control and therf
value of the remaining investment and proceeds filiaposal are recognised in profit or loss. When th
remaining investment constitutes significant inflae, it is accounted for as investment in an aaseci

51



Ronson Europe N.V.
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4. Standards issued but not yet effective

New standards, amendments to standards and ietatipns, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2010, and have not been appliggreparing these Consolidated Financial
Statements, are listed below:

« Amendments to IAS 3ZFinancial instruments: presentation: Classificatiaf Rights Issues-
effective for financial years beginning on or afteffebruary 2010,

« IAS 24 Related Party Disclosure¢revised in November 2009) — effective for finalcyears
beginning on or after 1 February 2010,

« IFRS 9Financial Instruments- effective for financial years beginning on oteafl January 2013 —
not endorsed by EU till the date of approval osthénancial statements,

« Amendments to IFRIC 14AS 19 —The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Fogdi
Requirements and their Interaction: Prepayments bfinimum Funding Requirementseffective for
financial years beginning on or after 1 Januaryl201

« IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Itrements— effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 July 2010,

« Amendment to IFRS First-time Adoption of International Financial Regiog Standards: Limited
Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures fostRime Adopters- effective for financial
years beginning on or after 1 July 2010,

« Improvements to IFRSgssued in May 2010) — some improvements are g&ffedor annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2010, the rest is aife for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011,

« Amendment to IFRS Financial Instruments — Disclosures: Transfer oh&incial Assets effective
for financial years beginning on or after 1 Julyi26- not endorsed by EU till the date of approval o
these financial statements,

« Amendments to IAS 1Icome Taxes: Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlyisgets- effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1 January20tot endorsed by EU till the date of approval of
these financial statements,

« Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Intdfmmal Financial Reporting Standards: Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for Fiiste Adopters - effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 July 2011 - not endorsecEbytill the date of approval of these financial
statements.

Management is considering the impact which theodction of the above-mentioned new standards,

amendments to existing standards and interpretatidihhaveon the accounting policies applied by the
Group.
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5. Segment reporting

The Group’s operating segments are defined as apantities developing particular residential
projects, which for the reporting purposes wereregated. The aggregation for reporting purpose is
based on geographical locations (Warsaw, P@anwaoctaw and Szczecin) and type of activity

(development of apartments and development of tuddoreover, for one particular entity the

reporting was based on type of income: rental ireom investment property.

According to the Management Board’'s assessmentoffegating segments identified have similar
economic characteristics. Aggregation based ontype of development within the geographical
location has been applied since primarily the locatand the type of development determine the
average margin that can be realized on each prajetthe project’s risk factors. Considering thet fa
that the production process for apartments is idiffefrom that for houses and considering the taat

the characteristics of customers buying apartmsiigbtly differ from those of customers interestad
buying houses, aggregation by type of developmathirnvthe geographical location has been used for
segment reporting and disclosure purposes.

Segment results, assets and liabilities includmstelirectly attributable to a segment as well aséh
that can be allocated indirectly based on reasenatileria. Unallocated items comprise head office
expenses and income tax assets and liabilitiesiaalibcated cash and cash equivalents.

Data presented in the table below are aggregatetyfr of development within the geographical

location:

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

As at 31 December 2010

Warsaw Pozna Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total
Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Apartents Houses Apartments  Houses
Segment assets 278,574 88,339 8,740 108,577 - 72,657 2,392 %3,4 7,280 - 620,016
Unallocated assets - - - - - - - - - 55,014 58,0
Total assets 278,574 88,339 8,740 108,577 - 652, 2,392 53,457 7,280 55,014 675,030
Segment liabilities 141,507 38,688 - 39,503 - 8,700 1 16,972 1 - 35
Unallocated
liabilities - - - - - - - - - 12,281 12,281
Total liabilities 141,507 38,688 - 39,503 - 87 1 16,972 1 12,281 257,653
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) As at 31 December 2009
Warsaw Pozna Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total
Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Apartments Houses Apartments Houses
Segment assets 315,967 108,221 8,740 118,869 8,379 68,758 2,361 51,848 7,318 - 690,461
Unallocated assets - - - - - - - - 52,930 50,93
Total assets 315,967 108,221 8,740 118,869 8,379 68,758 2,361 51,848 7,318 52,930 743,391
Segment liabilities 212,699 50,977 2,500 56,806 42 8,445 - 16,791 1 - 348,261
Unallocated
liabilities - - - - - - - - - 12,912 12,912
Total liabilities 212,699 50,977 2,500 56,806 42 8,445 - 16,791 1 12,912 361,173
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5. Segment reporting (cont'd)

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Warsaw

Pozna

Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total
Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Apartments  Houses Apartments  Houses
Revenue 197,769 6,371 351 36,774 - - - - - - 241,265
Segment result 47,439  (6,275) 114 8,082 (62) (465) (3) (29) 4 - 48,797
Unallocated result - - - - - - - - - (15%7 (15,675)
Result from
operating activities 47,439 (6,275) 114 8,082 (62) (465) 3) (29) (4) (15,675) 33,122
Net finance income 1,629 (8) - 144 1) (16) - 4) - 239 1,983
Profit before tax 49,068 (6,283) 114 8,226 (63) 484) 3) (33) 4) (15,436) 35,105
Income tax benefit (14)
Profit for the year 35,091
Capital expenditure - - - - - - - - - 1,701 1,701
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) For the year ended 31 December 2009
Warsaw Poznai Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total
Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Apartments  Houses Apartments  Houses

Revenue 48,929 - - 67,380 - - - - - - 116,309
Segment result 13,565 (653) 5,602 23,124 (11) 228 3) (43) 9) - 41,800
Unallocated result - - - - - - - - (13,953)  3(953)
Result from
operating activities 13,565 (653) 5,602 23,124 11 228 3) (43) ) (13,953) 27,847
Net finance expense (631) 7 - (1,595) - 6 - (11) - 365 (1,859)
Profit before tax 12,934 (646) 5,602 21,529 (11) 234 3) (54) 9) (13,588) 25,988
Income tax expense (4,954)
Profit for the year 21,034
Capital expenditure - - - - - - - - 356 356
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6. Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Gemini 93,423 -
Nautica 85,993 -
Galileo 36,774 67,380
Imaginarium Il 13,286 38,410
Constans I+l 4,313 -
Meridian 2,964 5,351
Gardenia 2,058 -
Imaginarium | 1,544 4,177
Other 910 991
Total revenue 241,265 116,309

7. Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Gemini 67,718 -
Nautica 64,472 -
Galileo 25,184 43,215
Imaginarium I 9,276 25,624
Constans I+l 4,078 -
Gardenia 2,058 -
Meridian 1,799 3,455
Imaginarium | 1,054 2,742
Write-down of inventory 2,188 -
Other 717 1,079
Total cost of sales 178,544 76,115

8. Selling and marketing expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Advertising 6,192 2,866
Brokerage fees 540 166
Other 665 299
Total selling and marketing 7,397 3,331
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9.

10.

11.

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Personnel expenses 10 9,963 9,083
External services 3,947 3,534
Materials and energy 553 437
Depreciation 452 379
Taxes and charges 363 241
Other 851 498
Total administrative expenses 16,129 14,172
Personnel expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Wages and salaries 9,039 7,990
Share-based payment transactions 23C 68 124
Social security and other benefits 856 969
Total personal expenses 9,963 9,083
Average number of personnel employed 49 41
Other expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Expense for abandoned projetts 2,525 100
Maintenance expense of unsold units 1,875 1,496
Impairment of trade receivabl&s 1,543 -
Expense for contractual penalties and compensation 481 345
Guaranty for construction work 220 -
Other expense 39 143
Civil activity taxes on contributions 479
Total other expenses 6,683 2,563

(1) For additional information see note 37 ‘Evedtsing the financial year — Aurora’.

(2) For additional information see note 20.
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12.

13.

Other income

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Revenues from contractual penalties and compemsatio 205 1,289

Rental income from inventories 342 410

Refund of civil activity taxes 1 239

Net profit on sale of Property and equipment 9 92

Other income 53 87

Total other income 610 2,117

Finance income and expense

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Recognized in the

statement of

Total Amount comprehensive

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) amount capitalized income

Interest income on bank deposits 2,294 72 2,222

Foreign exchange gain 76 - 76

Other finance income 113 - 113

Finance income 2,483 72 2,411

Interest expense on financial liabilities

measured at amortized cost (12,947) (12,932) (15)

Foreign exchange loss (146) - (146)

Commissions and fees (1,668) (1,509) (159)

Other finance expense (108) - (108)

Finance expense (14,869) (14,441) (428)

Net finance income/(expense) (12,386) (14,369) 1,983

For the year ended 31 December 2009 Recognized in the

statement of

Total Amount comprehensive

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) amount capitalized income

Interest income on bank deposits 856 103 753

Foreign exchange gain 44 - 44

Other finance income 54 - 54

Finance income 954 103 851

Interest expense on financial liabilities

measured at amortized cost (17,755) (16,565) ®,19

Foreign exchange loss (168) - (168)

Commissions and fees (2,704) (1,462) (1,242)

Other finance expense (110) - (110)

Finance expense (20,737) (18,027) (2,710)

Net finance expense (19,783) (17,924) (1,859)
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14. Income tax expense

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Current tax expense

Current period 596 3,664
Adjustment for prior period 2 (62)
Total current tax expense 598 3,602

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (5,221) 4,287
Benefit of tax losses recognized 4,637 (2,935)
Total deferred tax (benefit)/expense (584) 1,352
Total income tax expense 14 4,954

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Profit for the period 35,091 21,034
Total income tax expense 14 4,954
Profit excluding income tax 35,105 25,988
Expected income tax using the Polish tax rate (19% 6,670 4,938

Tax effect on:

Effect of Netherlands tax rates 401 108
Change in unrecognized temporary differences

over-provided in prior periods 2 (62)
Non-deductible expenses 101 89
Movement in unrecognized deferred tax assets 2,572 (586)
Recognition of the tax assets in connection with

organizational restructuring of the Group (10,514) -
Other differences 782 467
Tax charge for the period 14 4,954
Effective tax rate 0.04% 19.06%
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15. Property and equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Cars Equipment  Building Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at 1 January 881 597 1,319 2,797
Additions 95 246 1,360 1,701
Transferred from inventory’ - - 5,803 5,803
Disposals (44) - - (44)

Closing balance 932 843 8,482 10,257

Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at 1 January 467 372 639 1,478
Depreciation for the period 162 135 155 452
Disposals (44) - - (44)

Closing balance 585 507 794 1,886

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 414 225 680 1,319

Closing balance 347 336 7,688 8,371

(1) 8 units in Gemini project dedicated to the Camgs headquarter in Warsaw — transferred at cegte.

For the year ended 31 December 2009
Cars Equipment  Building Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at 1 January 959 433 760 2,152
Additions - 164 192 356
Transferred from inventory’ - - 682 682
Disposals (78) - (315) (393)
Closing balance 881 597 1,319 2,797

Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at 1 January 333 282 520 1,135
Depreciation for the period 168 90 121 379
Disposals (34) - (2) (36)

Closing balance 467 372 639 1,478

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 626 151 240 1,017
Closing balance 414 225 680 1,319

(1) Two units in Galileo project dedicated to then@pany’s offices in Pozra— transferred at cost value.

Impairment loss
In the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 Dece03, the Group did not recognize any
impairment loss with respect to Property and eqeipm
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16. Investment property

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Balance at 1 January 8,740 -
Transferred from long-term finance lease receiwabl - 638
Acquisitions - 2,500
Change in fair value during the year - 5,602
Balance as at 31 December, including: 8,740 8,740
Cost 3,138 3,138
Fair value adjustments 5,602 5,602

As at 31 December 2010, the investment propertydsc property held for long-term rental yields and
capital appreciation, and were not occupied byGhaup. The investment property consists of a pfot o
land in Warsaw (71, Gwialzista Street) and an office building with an agate usable floor space of
1,400 nf located on this plot that leased to third partieder lease agreements with an indefinite term
subject to a three-month notice period for terniomat

Investment property is valued at fair value deteadiannually by an independent appraiser, having an
appropriate recognized professional qualificatienveell as the Management assessment, based on
current prices on an active market. Investment gntypwas valued based on the discounted cash flow
approach, including the assumption as to the aryiell of 7.5%.

The continued instability in the financial marketuses volatility and uncertainty in the world’pital
markets and real estate markets. There is a lavidity level in the real estate market and trarieact
volumes have significantly reduced, resulting ilagk of clarity as to pricing levels and marketvers.
As a result, there is less certainty with regargatuations and market values can change rapiddytdu
the current market conditions.

The investment property is currently occupied.

17. Loans granted to third parties
The loans are granted to the joint venture. Thedomature in December 2016 and bear an interest
calculated at the beginning of each quarter basdtielatest interest rate as charged on the cmtismn

credit/loan granted by the banks to the Group aoteased by 2%. As at 31 December 2010, the loans
included PLN 542 thousand as nominal loan amouatRiN 2 thousand as accrued interest.
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18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as at therbegg and end of the financial periods are attebié to the

following:
Recognized in the Share in Closing
Opening statement of  deferred tax balance 31
balance 1 comprehensive of a joint December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2010 income venture 2010
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carry forward 12,908 (4,637) 114 8,385
Accrued interest 1,419 (1,339) - 80
Accrued expense 80 306 - 386
Other 487 233 - 720
Total deferred tax assets 14,894 (5,437) 114 9,571
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between tax base and carrying
value of inventory 16,360 (6,021) 55 10,394
Fair value gain on investment property 1,064 - - 064,
Total deferred tax liabilities 17,424 (6,021) 55 1458
Total deferred tax benefit (see Note 14) (584)
Deferred tax assets 14,894 9,571
Deferred tax liabilities 17,424 11,458
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities
for individual companies (11,003) (6,127)
Deferred tax assets reported
in the statement of financial position 3,891 344
Deferred tax liabilities reported
in the statement of financial position 6,421 831

The tax losses carried forward expire in the follwing years:

As at 31

December

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2010
2011 -
2012 25
2013 3,904
2014 3,233
2015 1,223
After 2015 -
Total deferred tax asset in respect of tax lossesrcad forward 8,385
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18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)

Opening Recognized in the Closing
balance statement of balance
1 January comprehensive 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2009 income 2009
Deferred tax assets
Tax losses carried forward 9,973 2,935 12,908
Accrued interest 995 424 1,419
Accrued expense 52 28 80
Other 174 313 487
Total deferred tax assets 11,194 3,700 14,894
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between tax base and carrying vafueventory 12,372 3,988 16,360
Fair value gain on investment property - 1,064 ,064
Total deferred tax liabilities 12,372 5,052 17,424
Total deferred tax expense (see Note 14) 1,352
Deferred tax assets 11,194 14,894
Deferred tax liabilities 12,372 17,424
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilitiesifdividual
companies (9,045) (11,478)
Deferred tax assets reported
in the statement of financial position 2,149 3,891
Deferred tax liabilities reported
in the statement of financial position 3,327 6,421

Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities

There are no unrecognized deferred tax liabilities

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to therxthat it is more likely than not that future ahle
profits will be available against which the assat de utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax asséasere
primarily to tax loss carry-forwards, which are rminsidered probable of realization prior to their
expiration.
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18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)
Realization of deferred tax assets

In assessing the realizability of deferred taxeessamanagement considers whether it is more littein

not that some portion or all of the deferred tagess will not be realized. The ultimate realizatan
deferred tax assets is dependent upon the gereratifuture taxable income during the periods in
which those temporary differences become deductM@magement considers the scheduled reversal of
deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxalieome, and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment. In order to fully realize the deferiaed asset (before offsetting against deferred tax
liability), the Group will need to generate futuexable income of approximately PLN 50,374 thousand
Taxable profit realized by the Group companies amwaito PLN 15,337 thousand for the year ended
31 December 2010. Based upon the level of histioidsa@ble income and projections for future taxable
income over the periods in which the deferred tssets are deductible, management believes it is mor
likely than not that the Group will realize the lbéits of these deductible differences. The amotithe®
deferred tax asset which is considered realizaioleld however be reduced in the near term if eséma
of future taxable income during the tax loss cdonward period are reduced.

Tax losses in Poland are required to be utilizethimw 5 years following the period in which they
originated, subject to the limitation that a maximaf 50% of the loss carry-forward can be usedne o
year. Tax losses in the Netherlands are requirdgetatilized within 9 years following the period in
which they originated.

Movement in unrecognized deferred tax assets

Unrecognized deferred tax assets in Poland

Balance 01 Tax Balance 31 Tax Balance 31
January losses Additions/ December losses Additions/ December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2009 expired  (Realizations) 2009 expired (Realizations) 2010
Tax losses 553 (298) (164) 91 (128) 4,144 4,107
Total 553 (298) (164) 91 (128) 4,144 4,107

Unrecognized deferred tax assets in the Nethedan

Balance 01 Balance 31 Balance 31
January 2009 Realizations December 2009 Realizations December 2010
In thousands of Polish Zlotys PLN EUR PLN EUR PLN EUR PLN EUR PLN EUR
Tax losses 4,014 962 (422) (88) 3,592 874 57@), (364) 2,020 510
Total 4,014 962 (422) (88) 3,592 874 (1,572]364) 2,020 510

Tax losses carried forward in Poland

As at 31 December 2010 2009

Recognized Unrecognized Total tax Recognized  Unrecognize Total tax
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) tax losses tax losses losses tax losses d tax losses losses
Tax loss 2005 carried forward - - - 566 - 566
Tax loss 2006 carried forward - 2,888 2,888 5,377 44 5,421
Tax loss 2007 carried forward 129 7,413 7,542 11,602 234 11,836
Tax loss 2008 carried forward 9,979 10,271 20,250 27,033 121 27,154
Tax loss 2009 carried forward 21,150 936 22,086 23,360 80 23,440
Tax loss 2010 carried forward 12,877 106 12,983 - - -
Total tax losses carried forward 44,135 21,614 65,749 67,938 479 68,417
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18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)
Tax losses carry forward

Tax losses carried forward in the Netherlands

As at 31 December 2010 2009

Recognized Unrecognized Total tax Recognized Unrecognized  Total tax
In thousands of EUR tax losses tax losses losses tax losses tax losses losses
Tax loss 2007 carried forward - 1,313 1,313 - 2,74 2,741
Tax loss 2008 carried forward - 688 688 - 688 688
Total tax losses carried forward - 2,001 2,001 - 3,429 3,429
As at 31 December 2010 2009

Recognized Unrecognized Total tax Recognized Unrecognized  Total tax
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) tax losses tax losses losses tax losses tax losses losses
Tax loss 2007 carried forward - 5,198 5,198 - @1,2 11,261
Tax loss 2008 carried forward - 2,725 2,725 - ],82 2,826
Total tax losses carried forward - 7,923 7,923 - 14,087 14,087

19. Inventory

For the year ended 31 December 2010:

Opening Transferred Share in Closing
balance 01 to property work in balance 31
January and progress of a Transferred to December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2010  equipment”  joint venture finished goods Additions 2010
Land and related expense 389,730 (554) 12,402 29,4 8,082 380,257
Construction costs 138,448 (4,877) - (151,708) 204, 23,069
Planning and permits 18,984 (120) 117 (4,959) 3,823 17,845
Borrowing cost$? 40,997 (198) 289 (8,038) 14,369 47,419
Other 4,331 (54) 174 (2,191) (44) 2,216
Work in progress 592,490 (5,803) 12,982 (196,299) 67,436 470,806
Opening Recognizecin Closing
balance 01 Transferred  the statement of balance 31
January from work in comprehensive  December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2010 progress income 2010
Finished goods 53,763 196,299 (175,452) 74,610
) Revaluation write down )
Opening recognized in statement of Closing
balance 01 comprehensive income balance 31
January December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2010 Increase Release 2010
Write-down - (2,188) 301 (1,887)
Total inventories at the
lower of cost or net
realizable value 646,253 543,529

(1) For additional information see note 15.
(2) Borrowing costs are capitalized to the value okimtory with 6.9% average effective capitalizatinterest rate.
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19. Inventory (cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2009:

Opening Transferred Closing
balance 01 to property balance 31
January and Transferred to December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2009 equipment® finished goods Additions 2009
Land and related expenses 408,098 (108) (23,729) 5,469 389,730
Construction costs 107,595 (510) (83,128) 114,491 138,448
Planning and permits 13,627 (12) (2,028) 7,397 18,984
Borrowing cost$? 29,243 (39) (6,131) 17,924 40,997
Other 7,579 (13) (2,970) (265) 4,331
Work in progress 566,142 (682) (117,986) 145,016 592,490
Opening Recognized in the Closing
balance 01 Transferred statement of balance 31
January from work in comprehensive December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2009 progress income 2009
Finished goods 10,868 117,986 (75,091) 53,763
Opening Revaluation write down recognized in Closing
balance 01 statement of comprehensive income balance 31
January December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2009 Increase Release 2009
Write-down - (127) 127 -
Total inventories at the lower of
cost or net realizable value 577,010 64625

(1) For additional information see note 15.

(2) Borrowing costs are capitalized to the value okimory with 7.5% average effective capitalizatioterest rate.

Write-down revaluating the inventory:

In view of the market situation in the property ketrin which the Group operates, during the year
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 the Group tooktiadarly rigorous approach to the inventory

review with regard to its valuation to net realigatalue. As a result, the Group made a write-down
adjustment in the total amount of PLN 2,188 thodsand PLN 127 thousand, respectively which
amount is included as part of cost of sales indbasolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The valuation of Inventory is as follows:

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Valued at cost 530,624 646,253
Valued at net realizable value 12,905 -

Total inventory 543,529 646,253
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19. Inventory (cont'd)
Balance sheet value of inventory used to secure lmareceived from banks (mortgage):

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance sheet value of inventory 314,374 442,331

Amount of secured bank loans 123,914 188,678

For information about future commitments to theagahcontractor for construction services related t
inventory construction, see Note 30.

20. Trade and other receivables and prepayments

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Value added tax (VAT) receivables 4,968 5,303
Trade and other receivables 1,761 1,636
Prepayments 505 545
Receivables from notary deposit 6,046 -
Claims receivabl& - 12,400
Total 13,280 19,884

(1) For addition information see note 37 ‘Eventsidg the financial year — Aurora’.

As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, ringpGad no allowance for doubtful debts.
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Gnoope-down an amount of PLN 1,543 thousand as a
irrecoverable bad debt included in Trade and atezivables.

21. Short-term bank deposits - collateralized

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Deposits collateral for securing the repaymenntdriest

related to the credit facilities provided to theoGp 1,585 3,421
Deposits collateral for construction loans - 1,649
Total 1,585 5,070

The interest rates earned on these deposits nanyZ% to 3% on an annual basis.
For information about the fair value of short-tdvemk deposits - collateralized see Note 29.

For information about the pledge over short teemkbdeposits see Note 25.
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22. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bahindrand and short-term deposits freely availddte
the Group. Cash at bank comprises of overnight sieppdhe short-term deposits have an original rigtu
varying from one day to three months.

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Cash at bank and in hand 66,159 5,854
Short-term deposit 28,729 52,190
Cash and cash equivalents 94,888 58,044

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates baisethily bank deposit rates. As at 31 Decembef 2011

31 December 2009, the Group held deposits amoutdif®i-N 61,668 thousand and PLN 4,114 thousand,
respectively, in overnight deposits and in saviogoants that earn interest rates varying between £2%.
Short-term deposits have a duration varying betvegenday and three months depending on the imneediat
cash requirements of the Group, and earn intetébeaespective short-term deposit rates varyetgvben
3% - 4%.

For information about the fair value of cash anshcequivalents see Note 29.

For information about the pledge over cash and egsivalents see Note 25.

23. Shareholders’ equity

A. Share capital

The authorized share capital of the Company cansis800,000,000 shares of EUR 0.02 par value each.
The number of issued and outstanding ordinary shaseat 31 December 2010 amounted to 272,360,000
(as at 31 December 2009: 272,360,000 shares).

On 22 October 2009, the Company issued 45,393,8@8shares, including 22,696,667 new shares issued
as a result of the conversion of the same numberaofants convertible to shares issued on the skaye
The warrants were offered free of charge in a fofra private placement to selected investors wh@»n
October 2009 subscribed for the Warrants and eseddiheir rights to subscribe for new shares. Thesy
proceeds from the new shares issued on 22 Octdlix 2nounted to PLN 72,629 thousand, whereas the
costs attributable to the issue of new shares asdioy the Company amounted to PLN 1,052 thousasd. A
a result, the net proceeds from the new sharesdssmounted to PLN 71,577 thousand.

B. Share premium

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at the beginning of the year 282,873 21848
Net proceeds of new shares issued in excess obha® - 67,768
Balance at the end of the year 282,873 282,873

(1) This represents the proceeds above par fraa#)393,333 new shares, issued on 22 October 20@9net
proceeds from the new shares issued on 22 Octol3d a@thounted to PLN 71,577 thousand, whereas the
par value of the 45,393,333 shares amounted to PBBOXhousand.
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23. Shareholders’ equity (cont'd)
C. Share-based payments

During the fourth quarter of 2007, a long-terrodntive plan (the ‘Plan’) was implemented. The pess
eligible for participation in the Plan are the eoydes of the Group, including the members of the
Management Board. Under the Plan, share optiongrarged to members of the Management Board and
selected employees. The exercise price of the gglamptions is determined by the Supervisory Board o
the date of granting the share options and shalbadess than the fair market value at the tim¢hef
grant of the options. Options are conditional o& ¢imployee being employed or Board members at the
time the options are exercisable (vesting periow) @an only be settled in shares. Options grarttad s
vest over three and five years, one third and dtieih each year after one year from the daterahg
respectively.

On 5 November 2007, a total of 1,900,000 optiaith an exercise price of PLN 5.75 per share were
granted to selected employees of the Company. ©dllove total, 700,000 options will vest over @&¢hr
year period and the remaining 1,200,000 optionkweit over five years, while having an optionahie

of five and seven years, respectively. The latiglions were granted to Mr Dror Kerem, the former
President of the Management Board and the formef@&xecutive Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the selemgployees that joined the option programme
(granted in 2007) had not exercised any of thefroog. Following the resignation of key management
employees during 2008 and 2009, a total of 1,260d#lions ceased to exist. The details regardiag th
number of the options outstanding as of 31 Decer2b#0 are provided below:

Number of options

Vesting dates Granted Exercised Cancelled Outstanding

5 November 2008 473,333 - (50,000) 423,333
5 November 2009 473,333 - (317,333) 156,000
5 November 2010 473,334 - (413,334) 60,000
5 November 2011 240,000 - (240,000) -

5 November 2012 240,000 - (240,000) -

Total 1,900,000 - (1,260,667) 639,333

The weighted average fair value of options grime?007 using the Black-Scholes valuation modas$ w
approximately PLN 2.75 per option. The significarguts into the model were a weighted average share
price of PLN 5.75 at the grant date, the exercig@pgmentioned above, volatility of 50%, divideniglg

of 0%, an option life of five years and seven ygansannual risk free rate of 6% and estimatioh 70&b6

from the employed will implement the options.

The cost impact of the share-based payment ofirtaiecial statements of the Company was an expense
of PLN 68 thousand for the year ended 31 Decemb&0 Zyear ended 31 December 2009: PLN 124
thousand) recognized in the statement of compréreirecome with a corresponding increase in equity.
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24. Net earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculatetivitiing net profit for the year by the weightedeaage
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the.y@iluted earnings per share amounts are caéuilay
dividing the net profit for the year by the weight@verage number of ordinary shares outstandinggltine
year plus the weighted average number of ordinhares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive instruments into ordinary shares.

The following reflects the income and share datadug the basic and diluted earnings per share
computations:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic):

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
Net profit (PLN thousands) 35,091 21,034
Balance at beginning of the period 272,360,000 ,26¥%667
Effect of new shares issued during the period - 708571
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) 272,360,000 235,672,238
Basic earnings per share 0.129 0.089

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
Net profit (PLN thousands) 35,091 21,034
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) 272,360,000 235,672,238
Effect of shares options on issue 639,333 639,333
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (dilutell 272,999,333 236,311,571
Diluted earnings per share 0.129 0.089

There have been no other transactions involvinghargt shares between the reporting date and tleeadat
completion of these consolidated financial statemen
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25. Loans and borrowings

Information about the contractual terms of the@¥'s interest-bearing loans and borrowings isqumtesl
in the table below. For more information about@reup’s exposure to interest rate and foreign cuye
risk, see Note 33.

As at 31 December 2010 2009

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Non-current loans and borrowings

Loans from related parties - 52,948
Secured bank loans 49,213 54,346
Loans from third parties 4,032 -
Total non-current loans and borrowings 53,245 10294

Current loans and borrowings

Loans from related parties 53,218 7,381
Secured bank loans 74,701 134,332
Loans from third parties 1,311 -
Total current loans and borrowings 129,230 141,38
Total loans and borrowings 182,475 249,007

Covenants on secured bank loans:

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Company habreached any loan covenant, which would
expose the Company for risk of obligatory and immagdrepayment of any loan and has been able to
extend all expiring loan facilities
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25. Loans and borrowings (cont’d)

Terms and debt repayment schedule
Terms and conditions of outstanding loans ar@ksais:

Loans as at 31 December 2010:

Nominal interest  Year of Accrued Bank  Carrying
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency rate  maturity Capital interest  Charges value
I.T.R. Dori B.V. PLN 6% 2011 42,610 217 - 42,827
Gator Investments Sp. z 0.0. PLN 6% 2011 10,338 53 - 10,391
Subtotal (related parties) 52,948 270 - 53,218
Wibor 1M +
Bank Loans PLN  Bank's margin 2011 17,150 88 - 17,238
Wibor 3M +
Bank Loans PLN  Bank's margin 2011 57,407 63 ) 57,463
Wibor 1M +
Bank Loans PLN  Bank's margin 2012 29,361 - (92) 29,269
Wibor 3M +
Bank Loans PLN  Bank's margin 2013 20,043 - (99) 19,944
Subtotal (bank) 123,961 151 (198) 123,914
Loans from partner in jointly
controlled entity (Landex) PLN 8% 2011 1,102 209 - 1,311
Loans from partner in jointly
controlled entity (Landexy) PLN 8.504" 2016 4,025 7 - 4,032
Subtotal (third parties) 5,127 216 - 5,343
Total 182,036 637 (198) 182,475

(1) Interest based on the latest interest rate as obérgn the construction credit/loan granted by tlaaks to the Group and

increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning cifi emarter.

(2) For additional information see note 36.
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25. Loans and borrowings (cont’d)

Loans as at 31 December 2009:

Nominal Year of Accrued Bank Carrying
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interest rate  maturity Capital interest charges value
I.T.R. Dori B.V.® PLN 2011 - 5,901 - 5,901
Gator Investments Sp. z o0.0. PLN 2011 - 1,480 - 1,480
I.T.R. Dori B.V.® PLN 6% 2011 42,610 - - 42,610
Gator Investments Sp. z 0.0. PLN 6% 2011 10,338 - - 10,338
Subtotal (related parties) 52,948 7,381 - 60,329
WIBOR 1M +
Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2011 50,550 - (535) 50,015
WIBOR 3M +
Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2011 84,288 73 (44) 84,317
WIBOR 1M +
Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2011 34,924 87 (509) 34,502
WIBOR 3M +
Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2011 20,043 4 (203) 19,844
Subtotal (bank) 189,805 164  (1,291) 188,678
Total 242,753 7,545 (1,291) 249,007

(1) Until 24 December 2009, this related party loan whge to Jeruzalem Finance Company B.V., a Dutcltdiniability
company owned by the same parties which are thessbllers of the Company’s parent company, |.T.&i B.V. Following
a transfer of the 100% ownership in Jeruzalem Faga@ompany B.V. to I.T.R. Dori B.V. and subsequeatlegal merger
between I.T.R. Dori B.V. and Jeruzalem Finance @om B.V. on 24 December 2009, whereby JeruzaleamEe Company
B.V. ceased to exist, the loan was assumed by. DBRB.V.

For the bank loans the following collateral was igen:

» Ordinary and floating mortgages on Inventory (&l restate units), see Note 19.

» Pledge over bank accounts which are presenteckilCtmsolidated Statement of Financial Position
as Cash and cash equivalents up to the amounddfiresits due amounting to PLN 1,115 thousand
and PLN 4,510 thousand as at 31 December 2010laB&& mber 2009, respectively.

» Deposits guarantee for interests on credits, s¢e Rl

» Assignment of receivables arising from insurancee@agent and from the agreements concluded
with clients.

» Subordination agreement on loans from related gmrti

» Blank promissory note drawn by particular subsidieempanies with a promissory note declaration
up to the amount of the loan plus interest.

» Advance payments of dividends until full repaymefioans are not allowed.

26. Trade and other payables and accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Trade payables 9,952 13,006
Guarantees for construction work 3,044 6,987
Accrues expenses 3,900 6,123
Value added tax (VAT) and other tax payables 929 1,009
Non-trade payables 1,128 604
Total 18,953 27,729

Trade and non-trade payables are non-interestrigeand are normally settled on 30-day terms.
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27. Advances received

Advances received consist of customer advancesfwstruction work in progress (deferred revenue)
and comprise customer advances for the followingegots:

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Imaginarium 11l 12,290 -

Constans I+l1 6,910 3,977
Nautica 6,598 31,237
Gardenia 6,497 -

Gemini | 4,071 22,568
Galileo 3,082 5,799
Imaginarium Il 2,036 7,699
Sakura | 1,247 -

Imaginarium | 612 546
Verdis | 471 -

Naturalis 374

Impressio | 69 -

Meridian - 1,459

Other 90 82

Total 44,347 73,367

For information about contingent receivables freigned contacts with clients, see Note 30.

28. Provisions

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,086 3,144
Increase/(decrease) 3,418 (58)
Balance at the end of the year 6,504 3,086

As at 31 December 2010, the provision includes:
e expected costs of development of certain plotsred owned by the Group according to the
conditions imposed by local authorities amountm@tN 5,650 thousand;
e expected necessary costs of guarantees for rootish works amounting to PLN 220
thousand;
e expected corporate tax expenses in relation wispute between one of the Company’s
subsidiaries and the local tax authorities in Pdblamounting to PLN 634 thousand.

As at 31 December 2009, the provision included:
e expected costs of development of certain plotaund owned by the Group according to the
conditions imposed by local authorities amountm@tN 2,480 thousand;
e expected corporate tax expenses in relation ttispute between one of the Company’s
subsidiaries and the local tax authorities in Pdblamounting to PLN 606 thousand.
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29. Fair value estimation

The fair values of financial assets and liabiliti¢sgether with the carrying amounts shown in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, arioows:

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Category Note  As at 31 December 2010
Carrying

amount Fair value
Assets:
Trade and other receivables and notary deposits Loans and receivables 20 7,807 7,807
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized Loans and receivables 21 1,585 1,575
Loans granted to third parties Loans and receivables 17 544 584
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading 22 94,888 94,888
Liabilities:
Secured bank loans Other financial liabilities 25 123,914 124,109
Loans from related parties Other financial liabilities 25 53,218 52,776
Loans from third parties Other financial liabilities 25 5,343 5,632
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses Other financial liabilities 26 18,024 18,024
Unrecognized gain (12)
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Category Note  As at 31 December 2009

Carrying

amount Fair value
Assets:
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables 20 14,036 14,036
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized Loans and receivables 21 5,070 5,040
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading 22 58,044 58,044
Liabilities:
Secured bank loans Other financial liabilities 25 188,678 188,764
Loan from related parties Other financial liabilities 25 60,329 59,935
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses Other financial liabilities 26 26,720 26,720
Unrecognized gain 278

Estimation of fair values

The following methods and assumptions were usesktinate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments:

e trade and other receivables, cash and cash eqguisaead trade and other payables: the carrying
amounts approximate fair value because of the shattrity of these instruments;

o short-term bank deposit - collateralized: the failue is estimated by discounting the future cash
flows of each instrument at rates currently offetedthe Group for similar instruments of
comparable maturities by the Group’s bankers;

e loans and borrowings: the fair value is estimatgdiiscounting the future cash flows of each
instrument at rates currently offered to the Grdop similar instruments of comparable
maturities by the Group’s bankers.

Interest rates used for determining fair value

The interest rates used to discount estimated ftasis (PLN denominated), where applicable, are
based on WIBOR plus/minus margin as at 31 Decerb&p and 31 December 2009 and are as

follows:

As at 31 December 2010 2009
Loans and borrowings 6.86% 7.27%
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 4.00% .00%
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30. Commitments and contingencies

Investment commitments:

The amounts in the table below present unchargessiment commitments of the Group in respect of

construction services to be rendered by the generdtactors:

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Sakura 25,286 -

Imaginarium 1l 8,224 -

Naturalis | 8,107 -

Naturalis Il 11,149 -

Nautica Il 1,359 -

Impressio | 14,939 -

Verdis 35,177 -

Essentia 15,946 -

Constans 702 1,934
Nautica - 7,410

Gemini - 11,211

Total 120,889 20,555

The increase in the investment commitments relédethe increase in the number of new projects
commenced during 2010 in comparison to the numbprajects commenced in 2009.

Other commitments:

According to the conditions of the termination agrent concluded with Mr Kerem on 3 September
2008, the consulting agreement between him andCtrapany and its subsidiary expired as of end of
March 2009 (‘Expiration Date’). As at the Expiratidate of the consulting agreement, Mr Kerem is
entitled to a bonus equal to 0.5% of the pre-taofifsr generated by projects that were owned by the
Company as of the expiration date. This concerngelier only those projects which are based on the
plots of land with validated zoning conditions oitwthe valid master plans. Moreover, Mr Kerem is

entitled to an additional bonus equal to 2.5% ef phe-tax profit generated by the projects thatevier

construction or were completed as of the Expirabaite

Contingent liabilities:

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not havecantingents liabilities.
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30. Commitments and contingencies (cont'd)

Contingent receivables - contracted sales not yeécognized:

The table below presents amounts to be received fl®e customers having bought apartments from

Ronson subsidiary companies and which are baseitheoralue of the sale and purchase agreements
signed with the clients until 31 December 2010rafteduction of payments received at reporting date
(such payments being presented in the Consolid&tatement of Financial Position as Advances

received):

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Imaginarium 111 13,417 -

Galileo 6,697 9,043
Sakura | 5,435 -

Verdis | 3,139 -

Gardenia 2,996 -

Constans 2,711 336
Naturalis | 2,124 -

Nautica 703 31,067
Impressio | 632 -

Gemini 415 32,003
Imaginarium I 124 4,772
Meridian - 7

Total 38,393 77,228

31. Related parties

Parent company
The Company enters into various transactions wattshareholders, subsidiaries and with its dinecto
and executive officers. The Company’s immediateediaders are I.T.R. Dori B.V. ('ITR Dori’) and GE
Real Estate CE Residential B.V, with an interesthiares in the Company’s capital of 64.2% and 15.3%
respectively, as at 31 December 2010. For a lisubsidiaries reference is made to Note 1(b).
The main related parties’ transactions arise on:

e loans received,

e transactions with key management personnel,

e shares and share options.

Loans received

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Greppid loans from related parties amounting to
PLN 10,288 thousand, comprising only accrued isterend did not receive any loans from related
parties in this period. During the year ended 3tdpaber 2009, the Group repaid loans from related
parties amounting to PLN 467 thousand, comprisinly accrued interest, and did not receive any loans
from related parties in this period. For furtheiormation see Note 25.

Transactions with key management personnel
As at 31 December 2010, key management persontiet @ompany include:

Shraga Weisman- President of the Management Board, Chief Exgeufifficer
Tomasz tapinski - Member of the Management Board, Chief Financidic®f
Andrzej Gutowski - Member of the Management Board, Sales and Mard&irector
David Katz - Member of the Management Board

Karol Pilniewicz - Member of the Management Board

Amos Weltsch- Member of the Management Board
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31. Related parties (cont'd)

Loans to directors
As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, weneno loans granted to directors.

Key management personnel compensation

Apart from the compensation listed below, there even further benefits, including share based
payments granted to key management personnel inpéhieds ended 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009. Key management personnel compemgatiobe presented as follows:

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Mr. Shraga Weisman, Chief Executive Officer

Salary and other short term employee benefits 66L,4 1,109
Management bonus 1,157 1,547
Subtotal - Mr. Shraga Weisman 2,623 2,656

Mr. Tomasz tapiski, Chief Financial Officer

Salary and other short term employee benefits 488 454
Management bonus 353 280
Subtotal - Mr. Tomasz tap#iski 841 734

Mr. Andrzej Gutowski, Sales and Marketing Director

Salary and other short term employee benefits 249 248
Management bonus 112 175
Subtotal - Mr. Andrzej Gutowski 361 423

Mr. Dror Kerem, former Chief Executive Officer

Salary and other short term employee benefits - 34 3
Management bonus - 110
Compensation for termination of employment cortrac 520 464
Subtotal - Mr. Dror Kerem 520 908
Total 4,345 4,721

Supervisory Board remuneration

The Supervisory Board of the Company consists wieénbers; the supervisory directors are entitleainto
annual fee of EUR 8,500 plus an amount of EUR 1/®0board meeting (EUR 750 if attendance is by
telephone). Two Supervisory Board members includimg Chairman of the Supervisory Board have
waived their remuneration and thus did not recaivg payment from the Company. The total amount due
in respect of Supervisory Board fees during 201RLisl 179 thousand (EUR 45 thousand; 2009: PLN 259
thousand (EUR 60 thousand)).

Residential units purchased by key management

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Graspsbld residential 3 units including parking ptace
and storages (“Units”) to Mr. Andrzej Gutowski amdi;. Tomasz tapiski and Mr. Karol Pilniewicz for

a total net amount (excluding VAT) PLN 424 thousaRdN 467 thousand and PLN 429 thousand,
respectively. These transactions were executedrals dength and were in adherence to the Group’s
policy in respect of related-party transactions.
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31. Related parties (cont’d)

32.

Shares and share options
Shares

On 22 October 2009, the Company, in the form ofigape placement, issued 45,393,333 new shares,
including 22,696,667 new shares issued as a re$uhie conversion of the same number of warrants
convertible to shares issued on the same day.tfamsaction included 6,454,931 shares issued jirect
the Company’s major shareholder, ITR Dori at amésprice of PLN 1.60 per share, and 22,696,667
warrants offered free of charge also to ITR Doriickhwarrants entitled ITR Dori to subscribe for
22,696,667 new ordinary shares at an exercise pfi€d.N 1.60 per share. ITR Dori subscribed for the
warrants, exercised its rights to subscribe for shares and paid for the new shares.

Share options

During the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31nilmre2009, the members of the Management
Board did not receive rights to shares or optiamsiwares.

Acquisition of shares in joint venture

On 23 December 2010, the Group acquired 57.8%eoétjuity in Landex Sp. z o.0. for a total amount of
PLN 7,534 thousand. In addition the Group paid meent of PLN 1,289 thousand for transfer of right t
loan granted by former Landex shareholder.

The assets and liabilities transferred and paid apart of the transaction are as follows:

As at 23 December 2010
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Cash and cash equivalents in joint venture eatityuired 127
Inventory 12,984
Other current assets 466
Non-current assets 61
Current liabilities (6,105)
Total net identifiable assets 7,533
Cash and cash equivalents in joint venture eatityired (127)
Total net cash outflow 7,406
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33. Financial risk management, objectives and polies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety afafincial risks: market risk (including currency rigkice
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and Idjty risk. The Group’s overall risk management peogme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial maskahd seeks to minimise potential adverse effetthe
Group’s financial performance. The Board of ManggiDirectors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are sumrdaseslew. The Group also monitors the market price
risk arising from all financial instruments.

The Group does not use derivative financial insenta to hedge currency or interest rate risksrayisi
from the Group’s operations and its sources ofrfoea It is, and has been throughout the year eBded
December 2010 and 2009, the Group’s policy thatrading in (derivative) financial instruments shiadl
undertaken.

The Group’s principal financial instruments comerisash balances, bank loans and loans from related
parties. The main purpose of these financial imsémts is to manage the Group’s liquidity and tceai
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group hagous other financial instruments such as findncia
lease receivables, trade debtors and trade creditiich arise directly from its operations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to thed@p if a customer or counter party to a finanaistiument
fails to meet its contractual obligations. Finahdiastruments that potentially subject the Group to
concentrations of credit risk consist principalfycash and cash equivalents and receivables.

The Group is making significant cash payments as sgcfmi preliminary land purchase agreements. The
Group minimizes its credit risk arising from suciyments by registering advance repayment obligation
in the mortgage register of the respective propdvtgnagement has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongdiagis. The Group does not expect any counter pddie
fail in meeting their obligationg he carrying amount of the financial assets reprietfee maximum credit
risk exposure. The maximum exposure to creditaiske reporting date was as follows:

As at 31 As at 31
In thousands of Polish Zloty (PLN) December 2010 ~ December 2009
Trade and other receivables 8,312 14,581
Short-term bank deposits - collateralized 1,585 5,070
Cash and cash equivalents 94,888 58,044
Total 104,785 77,695

The Group places its cash and cash equivalentinancial institutions with high credit ratings.
Management does not expect any counterparty tacfaileet its obligations. Concentrations of credit

with respect to trade receivables are limited duthé large number of customers comprising the @sou
customer base. The credit quality of cash at barid short-term bank deposits can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings:

In thousands of Polish Zloty (PLN) Decemﬁeszrazt 03110 Decemﬁeszrazt 03019
Rating

AAA 18 20
AA 21,995 1,280
A 72,432 56,562
BBB 443 182
Total cash at hand, at banks and short-term bank deosits 94,888 58,044
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33. Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont'd)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of dte cash flows of a financial instrument will fluate
because of changes in market prices, such as fomighange rates and interest rates will affect the
Group’s income or the value of its holdings of fical instruments, such as bank loans, loans from
related parties, cash and cash equivalents and-tehor bank deposits. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risloxps within acceptable parameters, while
optimising return.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk eceivables and payables denominated in a currency
other than PLN to a limited extent only. As at 3@cBmber 2010 and 2009, trade receivables denomiinate
in foreign currencies were insignificant.

(i) Price risk
The Group’s exposure to marketable and non-malkesecurities price risk does not exists becthese
Group has not invested in securities as at 31 Dbee2010 and 2009.

(iii) Interest rate risk
The Group’s fixed-rate borrowings are exposed t@sk of change in their fair value due to changes
interest rates. The Group’s variable-rate borrowiage exposed to a risk of change in cash flowstdue
changes in interest rates. Short-term receivables gayables are not exposed to interest rate risk.

In respect of income-earning financial assets atekést-bearing financial liabilities, the followgn
tables indicate their average effective interestgat the reporting date and the periods in whigy
mature or, if earlier, re-price.

As at 31 December 2010

More

Average effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 than
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PAN  Note interest rate Total or less months years years 5 years
Fixed rate instruments
Loans from related parties 25 6.00% 53,218 270 52,948 - - -
Loans from others 8.00% 1,311 1,311 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 22 0.05%-0.5% 4,492 4,492 - - - -
Short-term bank deposits —
collateralized 21 2%-3% 1,585 1,585 - - - -
Variable rate instruments

WIBOR + bank’s
Secured bank loans 25 margin 123,914 74,701 - 29,257 19,956 -
Loans from others 25 8.5%4Y 4,032 - - - - 4,032
Loans granted to third parties 17 8.59%4Y 544 - - - - 544

WIBOR - 1%-

Cash and cash equivalents 22 2% 90,396 90,396 - - - -

(1) The interest rate is calculated based on the ldtdstest rate calculated on the construction ctéoain granted by bank to the
Group increased by 2%, and updated at the beginofreyery quarter.

As at 31 December 2009

More
Average effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 than
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PAN  Note interest rate Total or less months years years 5 years
Fixed rate instruments
Loans from related parties 25 6.00% 60,329 5,000 2,381 52,948 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 22 0.05%-0.15% 1,740 1,740 - - - -

Short-term bank deposits —
collateralized 21 2%-3% 5,070 5,070 - - - -

Variable rate instruments

WIBOR + bank’s

Secured bank loans 25 margin 188,678 134,332 - 54,346 - -
WIBOR - 0.1% -
Cash and cash equivalents 22 1% 56,304 56,304 - - - -
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33. Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont'd)
It is estimated that a general increase of onegpgéage point in interest rates at the reporting eaiuld

increase (decrease) the net assets and the stateimemprehensive income by the amounts listetthén
table below. The analysis prepared for 12-monthioger assumes that all other variables remain

unchanged.
As at As at
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Increase Decrease Increase  Decrease
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN by 1% by 1% by 1% by 1%
Statement of comprehensive income
Variable interest rate assets 301 (301) 188 (188)
Variable interest rate liabilities * (425) 425 (633) 633
Total (123) 123 (445) 445
Net assets
Variable interest rate assets 301 (301) 188 (188)
Variable interest rate liabilities * (425) 425 (633) 633
Total (123) 123 (445) 445

* The financial costs which are related to loand &orrowing are capitalized by the Group to worlpnegress. Such costs are
gradually recognized in the statement of comprekieriscome based on the proportion of residentiétisusold. It has been assumed
in the above analysis that one third of the finahcosts calculated and capitalized in a givenggkeis disclosed in the statement of
comprehensive income based on the proportion afeesal units sold of a given period and the remmgj part of the costs remains
in the inventories and will be disclosed in theestezent of comprehensive income in the followingoagting periods.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will nbie able to meet its financial obligations as thredl due.
The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is tesume, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities whenud, under both normal and stressed conditions,owith
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damagdkeadsroup’s reputation.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of fundsg a recurring liquidity planning tool. This too
considers the maturity of both its financial invesnts and financial assets (e.g. accounts receivatier
financial assets) and projected cash flows fronratpns. The Group's objective is to maintain abeé¢
between continuity of funding and flexibility thrghh the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and
shareholders loans.

The table below analyses the Group’s financialilitéds into relevant maturity groupings based be t

remaining period from reporting date to the contratmaturity date. The amounts disclosed in tieta
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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As at 31 December 2010

Less than Between Between Over
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Loans and borrowings 133,292 32,746 24,188 5,259
Trade and other payables 18,024
Total 151,316 32,746 24,188 5,259

As at 31 December 2009

Less than Between Between Over
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Loans and borrowings 144,823 118,954
Trade and other payables 26,720
Total 171,543 118,954

Real-estate risk

Management believes that the residential market @wbhole in Poland is less saturated than in angroth
country within the European Union, including aldee tdeveloping countries in Central and Eastern
Europe, which in general provides for many oppaties for residential developers. However, duehi t
fact that the Polish economy is still experiencingny dynamic changes, it may be sensitive to pialent
up and down-turns. These market conditions formiraportant and significant risk factor for the
Company and for other residential developers, asgd#velopment process (including stages such as the
purchase of land, the preparation of land for aomiesibn works, the construction process itself and,
finally, also the sale of apartments) may take s#vgears from start until completion. It is impamt to
understand that decisions taken by the Company asgstme a relatively long-term time horizon forheac
project as well as a significant volatility of lamfices, construction cost levels and sales prafes
apartments during the duration of projects whichynieve a material impact on the Company’s
profitability and financing needs.

Another specific risk is associated with the ragalelopment of many Polish cities, which very often
involves a lack of stability of development plankieh could substantially impact the likelihood that
projects on particular sites are realised as Ihjt@desired or planned. Quite often, residentialalepers
are interested in buying land parcels without zgrianditions or without a valid master plan for #rea,
which would allow for a better assessment of thémaite value of the plot. Pursuing such market
opportunities may result in relatively low pricefstbe land parcels. However, this strategy mayItésu
increasing operational and financial risks for dexeloper. Moreover, changing development plarthef
cities could also impact the planned developmedtraalisation of utility infrastructure (includingater,
gas, sewage and electricity connections), whiatritical factor for the Company and other develsper
However, for a vast majority of land parcels, thmr@any has already obtained zoning approvals, which
reduces this risk to the Company significantly.

Another operating risk lies within the constructiprocess itself. The Company does not operate a
construction business, but, instead, it hires thadty general contractors, who are responsibleuioning

the construction and for the finalisation of thejpct including obtaining all permits necessary dafe

use of the apartments. Important selection criteti@n hiring a general contractor include expegenc
professionalism and financial strength of the cactor as well as the quality of the insurance polic
covering all risks associated with the constructioocess.

82



Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33.

34.

Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont'd)

Recent turbulence in the financial markets hasltex$un a lack of stability in the manner in which
financing institutions (banks) have approached be#h estate companies and individual customersiwhe
applying for a mortgage loan. As the real estatsirtass is very capital consuming, the role of the
banking sector and its lending abilities are cruftinthe Company leveraging not only when landceés

are acquired but also during the later stages wéldpment, especially during the construction phase
Moreover, the availability of external financinga<rucial element driving the demand for apartiseas

the vast majority of our customers are using maggaecured loans to finance the purchase of
apartments.

Capital management

When managing capital, it is the Group’s objectivsafeguard the Group’s ability to continue a®ing
concern in order to provide returns for shareha@srd benefits for other stakeholders and to miaisata
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost ofitehpin order to maintain or adjust the capitalisture,
the Group may adjust the profit appropriation, metcapital to shareholders, issue new shares loassits

to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the itrgushe Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio and leverage.

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divigyetbtal equity. Net debt is calculated as totarbwings
(including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ slsown in the consolidated Statement of Financial
Position) less cash and cash equivalents. Leveimagmlculated as net debt divided by total capital
employed. Total capital employed is calculated eguity’ as shown in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position plus net debt financing assetspieration.

The gearing ratios and leverage at 31 December @0d@B1 December 2009 were as follows:

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Loan and borrowings, including current portion 285 249,007
Less: cash and cash equivalents (94,888) (58,044)
Net debt 87,587 190,963
Total equity 417,377 382,218
Total capital employed 504,964 573,181
Gearing ratio 21.0% 50.0%
Leverage 17.3% 33.3%

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are stiliffeexternally imposed capital requirements. There
were no changes in the Groups approach to cap#abhgement during the year.
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35. Cash flow reconciliation

Inventory
For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Balance sheet change in inventory 102,724 (69,243)
Finance expense, net capitalized into inventories 14,369 17,924
Investment in joint venture 12,984 -
Write-down of inventory (2,188) -
Inventory transferred into fixed assets (5,803) 82(6
Change in inventory in the consolidated statementf@ash flows 122,086 (52,001)
Trade and other receivables and prepayments
For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Balance sheet change in trade and other receivabteprepayments 6,604 11,579
Investment in joint venture 466 -
Change in trade and other receivables and prepaymés in the
consolidated statement of cash flows 7,070 11,579
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses
For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Balance sheet change in trade and other payabdescanued expenses (8,776) 3,897
Investment in joint venture (26) -
Acquisitions of investment property 2,500 (2,500)
Change in trade and other payables and accrued expses in the
consolidated statement of cash flows (6,302) 1739
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As at 31 December 2010, the Group has a 57.8%e#sttér Landex Sp. z 0.0. (acquired on 23 Decemb#0;2
see also Note 32). Taking into account the fact #iathe Landex management board decisions require
unanimous consent and the management board coo$isi® members - one nominated by the Group and
another nominated by other venture - where eachbeenrote is equal, Group Management believes tiat t
agreement meets the definition of a joint ventugeeament. Consequently, the Group accounts for the
investment in Landex as for an investment in atfpicontrolled entity in accordance with IAS 31.

The following amounts represent the Group’s shdrthe assets and liabilities, and sales and resilthe
joint venture consolidated at proportionate shdrg708%. They are included in the consolidatedestaint of
financial position and consolidated statement ohjgehensive income:

As at 31 December 2010

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Non-current assets 61
Current assets 13,577
Total assets 13,638
Non-current liabilities 4,032
Current liabilities 1,337
Total liabilities 5,369
Net assets 8,269
For the year ended 31 December 2010
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Revenues -
Expenses (9)

Profit before taxation 9

Income tax expense
Profit for the year (9)

As at the day of acquiring shares, Landex is theesvof a plot of land with an area of 8,953 located in
Warsaw, Wola District, at Jana Kazimierza Streka(id 1”) and Landex is considered as a single &sgéy.

In addition, Landex is the buying party to a prefiary sale and purchase agreement of a plot of f@tidan
area of 7,239 Mm(“Land 2”) located nearby Land 1. The Group isnpli@g to build on Land 1 and Land 2
multifamily buildings that will comprise 639 unitgith an aggregate floor space of 35,000 m

In case of building permit for properties on Landrid Land 2 not being obtained or such permitsbeatg
valid on 31 December 2011, the Group shall be ledtifbut not obliged to) to call upon other venttwe
purchase back 50% shares from the Group for theiahad the purchase price.

Additionally, after 30 June 2011 former venturel\iéve a right to repurchase 39 shares (7.8% jJimtith

the rights and receivables towards Landex soltiéaGroup if final sale and purchase agreement nfll2aby
Landex is not concluded before 30 June 2011. Tiee ffor repurchase of the 39 shares (7.8%) shadiduel

to the price paid by the Group. The Group shalbblkged to resell shares to former venture in ssitthation.
During January 2011 Landex signed the final sald porchase agreement of Land 2, for additional
information see note 38 of the Consolidated Firelr8iatements.

The value of the options would refer principallyttee difference between exercise price, being tie dor
which the Group acquired the shares and the féirevaf shares at the reporting date (determinethbyalue

of land owned by Landex). In Management’s assesgnties fair value of shares has not changed ad at 3
December 2010 compared to 23 December 2010 wheradbuisition of share in Landex was realized,
therefore the value of options was assessed tmivaierial.
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Bank loans

The Company has signed an annex extending the ityadfia loan facility (PLN 14.7 million) which was
used for refinancing of the land purchase in respéthe Verdis project (previously named OrionheT
final repayment date has been postponed until Nbeen2012. The Company entered also into a
construction loan facility for this project for amount up to PLN 24.5 million.

The Company has also secured financing for cort#brucosts in respect of the Impressio project
(previously named Goya) in Wroctaw, by enteringoitat loan facility agreement for an amount up to
PLN 9.3 million.

The Company has signed an annex extending the ityadfia loan facility (PLN 14.7 million) which was
used for the refinancing of the land purchase épeet of the Magellan project. The final repayndaie
has been postponed until December 2012.

Moreover, the Company has entered into the new &marement with Pekao S.A. envisaged to finance
construction costs of the first stage of Sakurggmtoat Klobucka Street in Warsaw (up to PLN 32.9
million) as well as extended repayment date of Isapporting purchase of land in this project (PLINO2
million) until 2013.

The Company has also entered with Polbank into toast®on loan facility agreement supporting
construction of project Naturalis for up to (PLN.2illion).

The Company repaid the loans used for the Constamsginarium, Galileo, Copernicus and Gemini
projects thereby reducing its banking debt by PI9\D@nillion in total.

Projects completed

In June 2010, the Company completed the constiuctidhe Gemini project comprising 164 units with a
total area of 13,126 mFrom this completed project, 8 units with a t@taa of 869 mwere transferred to
property and equipment.

In June 2010, the Company completed the constructidghe Nautica project comprising 149 units wath
total area of 10,648

In July 2010 and in November 2010, the Company detag the construction of the first phase and the
second phase of the Constans housing project tmaprising 8 semi-detached units (total 16 unitghwi

an aggregate floor space of 4,471 and 5 semi-detached units (total 10 units) withaggregate floor
space of 2,808 i

In December 2010, the Company completed the carigiruof the Gardenia project comprising 22 units
with a total area of 3,683%n

Commencements of new projects

In May 2010, the Company commenced the construatfdhe Imaginarium Il project (the sales process
commenced earlier) comprising 45 units with an aggte usable floor space of 3,800 m

In June 2010, the Company commenced the constructiothe Nautica Il project (the sales process
commenced earlier) comprising one semi-detachedamoi one house (in total 3 units) with an aggregat
floor space of 600

In September 2010, the Company commenced the catistn of the Naturalis | project (the sales praces
commenced earlier) comprising 52 units with an aggte floor space of 2,900m

In September 2010, the Company commenced the catistn of the Sakura | project (the sales process
commenced earlier) comprising 120 units with arregate floor space of 8,100m

In October 2010, the Company commenced the corigtnuof the Impressio | project (the sales process
commenced earlier) comprising 70 units with an aggte floor space of 4,400°m
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Commencements of new projects (cont’d)

In November 2010, the Company commenced the catigtruof the Verdis | project (the sales process
commenced earlier) comprising 139 units with arregate floor space of 9,40Gm

In November 2010, the Company commenced the canstruof the Essentia | project (the sales process
commenced earlier) comprising 82 units with an aggte floor space of 5,2000m

In December 2010, the Company commenced the catisinuof the Naturalis 1l project (the sales praces
commenced earlier) comprising 60 units with an aggte floor space of 3,400°m

Aurora

In May 2009, the Company entered into a settleragnéement with the seller of a land plot in Pdzna
(project Aurora), which concluded the dispute betwgarties that started in September 2008. Thersell
has confirmed that the original agreement relatedcjuisition of land has expired and has commitbed
pay back the advance payment (PLN 12.4 million) rugatisfaction of certain conditions. While the
Company decided to enter into this compromise ayeet despite the fact that the Management Board was
confident about the Company’s ultimate successinaurt proceeding. The Management Board was of
the opinion that a court proceeding would nonetiglee long, expensive and complicated. Based on the
compromise agreement reached, the parties agreededuction of the repayment to a final settlentgnt
PLN 9.0 million (plus statutory interest accruexdcs 1 August 2009 on the unpaid amount) if repgithe

end of April 2010. Notwithstanding the said compisgnagreement, the Management of the Company has
assessed chances of the Seller to arrange relfivantial resources and to finalize the settlenweitiin

agreed timeframe as unlikely and decided to natg®d with any write-off.

At 30 April 2010, the seller repaid the full PLNO9million plus PLN 0.9 million of interest, afterhich

all settlements between the Company and the selge cleared. As a result of the settlement, the
Company recognized a write-down expense for thenddrged project amounting to PLN 2.5 million
which is included in the Consolidated Statemen€omprehensive Income under “Other expenses” (see
Note 11).

Land purchase

On 23 December 2010, the Group acquired 57.8%eoétluity in Landex Sp. z 0.0. (“Landex”) for a tota
amount of PLN 7.5 million (for addition informatiosee note 32 and 36 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements). In connection with and in additiorthis acquisition, the Group has committed financing
through granting loans to Landex for the purchabea @lot of land for which Landex had signed a
preliminary sale and purchase agreement (Landdessribed below). The amount of loans committed by
Ronson with respect to this transaction, includatgp financing required by Landex to complete land
acquisition amounted to PLN 9.5 million.

As the day of purchasing Landex was the owner pfoa of land with an area of 8,953?rfocated in
Warsaw, Wola District, at Jana Kazimierza Stredtaid 1”). In addition, Landex was a party to a
preliminary sale and purchase agreement of angtleérof land with an area of 7,239°rffLand 2”)
located nearby Land 1.

In total Land 1 and Land 2 shall allow the Groupbtdld multifamily buildings that will comprise 639
units with an aggregate floor space of 35,060 m
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38. Subsequent events
Land purchase

In January 2011, Landex Sp. z 0.0. has executelimgmary sale purchase agreement by finalising
acquisition of the land with an area of 7,238 lotated in Warsaw, Wola District, at Jana Kazimxéer
Street.

Bank loans

In March 2011, the Company entered into annexésato facilities with BZWBK S.A. for financing land
acquisitions for a total amount of PLN 57.4 millidased on the signed annexes, the repayment afates
these loans have been extended from 31 March 2011July 2012. The loan agreements executed with
BZWBK S.A. envisage also entering into a new agrnsupporting construction of project Essentia in
Szczecin for amount of (PLN 14 million).

Related parties loans

In March 2011, the Company repaid 50% of the lo@mtgived from related parties amounting to PLN
26.5 million. The repayment related to principaloamt only.
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Company Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Revenues from consulting services 5,434 2,999
General and administrative expense 3 (4,831) (5,334)
Operating profit/(loss) 603 (2,335)
Finance income 5 5,534 3,810
Finance expense 5 (961) (901)
Net finance income 4,573 2,909
Profit before taxation 5,176 574
Income tax 6 - -
Profit before result from subsidiaries 5,176 574
Result from subsidiaries after taxation 8 29,915 20,460
Profit for the year 35,091 21,034

The notes on pages 93 to 98 are an integral patttege Company financial statements.
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After profit appropriation

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Assets

Investment in subsidiaries 382,887 276,945
Loan granted to subsidiaries 18,769 75,087
Total non-current assets 401,656 352,032
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 69 111
Receivable from subsidiaries 4,259 1,658
Cash and cash equivalents 29,332 45,477
Total current assets 33,660 47,246
Total assets 435,316 399,278
Equity

Shareholders’ equity 10

Share capital 20,762 20,762
Share premium reserve 282,873 282,873
Revaluation reserve 4,173 4,173
Retained earnings 109,569 74,410
Total shareholders’ equity 417,377 382,218
Liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Loans from subsidiaries 11 - 16,028
Total long-term liabilities - 16,028
Current liabilities

Loans from subsidiaries 11 16,864 -
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses 1,075 1,032
Total current liabilities 17,939 1,032
Total liabilities 17,939 17,060
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 435,316 399,278

The notes on pages 93 to 98 are an integral pitttese Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 Decemp@09:

Share Share Revaluation Retained Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) capital premium reserve earnings equity
Balance at 1 January 2009 16,953 215,105 - 57,42589283
Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 - - 4,173 16,861 21,034
Issue of new sharés 3,809 67,768 - - 71,577
Share-based paymerits - - - 124 124
Balance at 31 December 2009 20,762 282,873 4,173 ,47a 382,218
Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 - - - 35,091 35,091
Share-based paymerits - - - 68 68
Balance at 31 December 2010 20,762 282,873 4,17309,969 417,377

D This represents the proceeds above par from t1893333 new shares, issued on 22 October 2009ndthe
proceeds from the new shares issued on 22 Octd@® amounted to PLN 71,577 thousand, after a
deduction of PLN 1,052 thousand representing tte¢ tost directly attributable to the new sharssiésl.

2 gee Note 23C tot the Consolidated Financial Statesne

The notes on pages 93 to 98 are an integral patthege Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 35,091 21,034
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period

to net cash (used in)/from operating activities:

Net finance income, net 5 (4,573) (2,909)
Net results subsidiaries during the year 8 (29,915) (20,460)
Share based payment 68 124
Subtotal 671 (2,211)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivabiegs

prepayments 42 35
Decrease/(increase) in receivable from subsidiarie (2,601) 893
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payabla@ded

expense 43 (22)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors from subsidiaries - -
Subtotal (1,845) (1,304)
Interest received 955 536
Net cash used in operating activities (890) (768)
Cash flows from investing activities

Loan granted to subsidiaries 9 (14,250) (21,600)
Repayment of Loan granted to subsidiaries 9 3,800 2,790
Investment in subsidiaries 8 (4,805) (7,225)
Net cash used in investing activities (15,255) (26,035)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from new shares issued - 72,629
Costs directly attributed to the new shares issued - (1,052)
Net cash from financing activities - 71,577
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (16,145) 44,774
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 45,477 703
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 29,332 45,477

The notes on pages 92 to 98 are an integral patthege Company financial statements.
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1. General

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’), is a Nethedkatimited liability company with its statutory ¢ea

in Rotterdam, the Netherlands, and was incorporateti8 June 2007.

The shares of the Company are traded on the WaBsaok Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31
December 2010, 64.2% of the outstanding sharekseddeby I.T.R. Dori B.V. ('ITR Dori’), 18.4% of the
outstanding shares are held by GE Real Estate Gil&t#ial B.V. (‘GE Real Estate’) and the remaining
15.3% of the outstanding shares are held by théqub

The Company holds and owns (directly and indig@@b6 Polish company’s. These companies are active
in the development and sale of units, primarilyrapants, in multi-family residential real-estat@jacts

to individual customers in Poland and lease reateso third parties.

2. Accounting principles

The Company’s financial statements have beenapegpunder the option of clause 362.8 of Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code, meaning thataccounting principles and measurement basis of
the Company’s financial statements are similar hosé applied with respect to the Consolidated

Financial Statements (see Notes 2 and 3 to the didaged Financial Statements), except for the

valuation of subsidiaries which are valued using tiet asset value method. The Company Financial
Statements have been prepared in conformity witheggdly accepted accounting principles in the

Netherlands (‘Dutch GAAP’), whereas the Consolidaténancial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reportitgn8ards (‘'IFRS’) as adopted by the EU as described
in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue from the consulting services are feesgeldafrom holding to subsidiaries and is it elimétht
upon consolidation.

3. General and administrative expense

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

External services 1,156 1,269
Share-based payment 68 124
Remuneration fees (see Note 4) 3,434 3,730
Other 173 211
Total 4,831 5,334
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4. Directors’ remuneration

Key management personnel compensation

Apart from the compensation listed below, there even further benefits, including share based
payments granted to key management personnel inp¢hiods ended 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009. Key management personnel compemgatiobe presented as follows:

As at 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Mr. Shraga Weisman, Chief Executive Officer

Salary and other short term employee benefits 66L,4 1,109
Management bonus 1,157 1,547
Subtotal - Mr. Shraga Weisman 2,623 2,656
Mr. Tomasz tapiski, Chief Financial Officer

Salary and other short term employee benefits 488 454
Management bonus 353 280
Subtotal - Mr. Tomasz tapiski 841 734
Mr. Andrzej Gutowski, Sales and Marketing Director

Salary and other short term employee benefits 249 248
Management bonus 112 175
Subtotal - Mr. Andrzej Gutowski 361 423
Mr. Dror Kerem, former Chief Executive Officer

Salary and other short term employee benefits - 34 3
Management bonus - 110
Compensation for termination of employment cortrac 520 464
Subtotal - Mr. Dror Kerem 520 908
Total 4,345 4,721

Supervisory Board remuneration

The Supervisory Board of the Company consists wieénbers; the supervisory directors are entitleainto
annual fee of EUR 8,500 plus an amount of EUR 1 a®0board meeting (EUR 750 if attendance is by
telephone). Two Supervisory Board members includimg Chairman of the Supervisory Board have
waived their remuneration and thus did not recaivg payment from the Company. The total amount due
in respect of Supervisory Board fees during 201RLisl 179 thousand (EUR 45 thousand; 2009: PLN 259
thousand (EUR 60 thousand)).

Share and options on shares

On 5 November 2007, the Company issued 1,900,006nspwith an exercise price of PLN 5.75 each and
right to obtain 300,000 shares. Following the neatgpn of key management employees in 2008 and,2009
a total of 1,260,667 options were cancelled, whretba right to obtain 300,000 shares was exercised
during 2008. During the year ended 31 December 2b&0other selected employees that joined th@opti
program had not exercised any of their options.

During the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31nilmre2009, the members of the Management
Board and the members of the Supervisory Boardhdideceive rights to shares or options on sh#ss.
at 31 December 2010 the rights to shares that gemeted to individual members of the Management
Board and Supervisory Board are as follows:
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e Mr Andrzej Gutowski: a right to subscribe to a tatamber of 150,000 shares in the capital of the
Company with a nominal value of EUR 0.02 eachgioissue price per share equal to PLN 5.75,
one third per year on the anniversary date of tite df 5 November 2007 for three successive
years, the optional exercising term expire on tiNoBember 2012.

5. Net finance income and expense

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Interests on granted loans to subsidiaries 4,454 2093
Interest income on bank deposits 1,032 384
Foreign exchange gain 48 217
Finance income 5,534 3,810
Interests on loans received from subsidiaries X836 (836)
Foreign exchange loss (109) (50)
Commissions and fees (16) (15)
Finance expense (961) (901)
Net finance income 4,573 2,909

6. Income tax

No Dutch income taxes have been recorded, primhgktause of the tax loss for the financial period
ended 31 December 2010, which will be carried fodw&ealisation of this deferred income tax asset i
dependent upon generating sufficient taxable incomtbe period that the deferred income tax asset i
realised. Based on all available information, itnist probable that the deferred income tax asset is
realisable and therefore the deferred tax asseti®d at nil.

The accumulated tax losses available for carrwdod as per 31 December 2010 are estimated to be
EUR 2,001 thousand (2009: EUR 3,429 thousand) apidesas follows:

As at 31

December

In thousands of Euros (EUR) 2010
2011 -
2012 -
2013 -
2014 -
2015 -
After 2015 2,001
Total tax losses carry forward 2,001

7. Personnel

The Company did not employ any personnel duriregfthancial years ended 31 December 2010 and
31 December 2009.
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8. Investment in subsidiaries
The subsidiaries of the Company are valued at tteiasset value.
The movements in subsidiaries are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at beginning of the year 276,945 249,260
Investments in subsidiaries 4,805 7,225
Net result subsidiaries during the year 29,915 4Q0,
Loans converted into equity) 71,222 -
Balance at end of the year 382,887 276,945

(1) The conversion of loans into equity was done toropé the finance structure in the Group.

9. Loan granted to subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at beginning of the year 75,087 53,068
Loans granted during the year 14,250 21,600
Loans repayment during the year (3,800) (2,790)
Loans converted into equity (71,222)

Interests accrued 4,454 3,209
Balance at end of the year 18,769 75,087

(1) The conversion of loans into equity was done toropé the finance structure in the Group.

The loans are due after five years from the gngntiate and bear an interest rate of 6%, the paheind
accrued interest are payable at the date of matirithe loan. The borrower may redeem the loaamat
time starting one year from the loan agreement date

10. Shareholders’ equity

The authorized share capital of the Company caneisB00,000,000 shares of EUR 0.02 par value each.
The number of issued and outstanding ordinary shaseat 31 December 2010 amounted to 272,360,000
(as at 31 December 2009: 272,360,000 shares). €tailsion shares issued during 2010 and 2009,
reference is made to Note 21 of the consolidatehfiial statements.

According to Dutch Law the Company has an amouet ¢fi tax) of PLN 4,173 thousand (2009: PLN

4,173 thousand) as legal reserve relating to useshlresults of changes in fair value of investment
properties
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11. Loans from subsidiaries

12.

13.

14.

15.

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at beginning of the year 16,028 15,192
Interests accrued 836 836
Balance at end of the year 16,864 16,028

The loans mature on 31 October 2011 and beartaregt rate of 6%, the principal and accrued istere
are payable at the date of maturity of the loare Bbrrower may redeem the loan at any time starting
one year from the loan agreement date.

Commitments and contingencies

As at 31 December 2010, the Company had no commitmend contingencies other than the contingent
commitment in relation to the termination agreemeith its former Managing Director, Mr Kerem, as
disclosed in note 30 to the Consolidated Finar8iatements.

Related party transactions

During the financial years ended 31 December 20id &1 December 2009, respectively, there were no
transactions between the Company on the one hamtjts shareholders, their affiliates and otheates
parties which would qualify as not being at arnesgth.

Financial risk management, objectives and polies

For a description of the Company’s financial riskmagement, objectives and policies reference isrnad
note 33 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Information about agreed-upon engagements of ¢hCompany'’s auditor
Information about the agreements and the values fhmse agreements is disclosed below:

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2009
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Audit remuneratiof®” 603 617
Exchanging rate differences on prior year settlgse - 110
Total remuneration 603 727

@ Audit remuneration includes the amounts paid and wuthe Company’'s auditors worldwide for

professional services related to the audit andevevof unconsolidated and consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiarieshforelevant year (excluding fees for tax advisory
services). Part of audit fee related to Dutch awnd#énd amounted to PLN 178 thousand being
equivalent of EUR 44.6 thousands for 2010 and PLR thbusands is equivalent of EUR 44.6
thousands for 2009.
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16. Subsequent events

For a description of the Company’s subsequent swaference is made to note 38 of the Consolidaieancial
Statements.

Rotterdam,
8 March 2011

The Management Board

Shraga Weisman Tomasz tamiski Andrzej Gutowski
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Sales and Marketing Director
Amos Weltsch David Katz Karol Pilniewicz

The Supervisory Board

Uri Dori Frank Rosee Mark Segall

Yair Shilhav Reuven Sharoni
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Other information

Articles of Association rules regarding profit appropriation

In accordance with Article 30 of the Articles of #&giation,

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

8)
9)

the Board of Managing Directors, with prior apprbeé the Supervisory Board, shall determine
which portion of the profits — the positive balarafethe income statement — shall be reserved. The
profit remaining shall be at the disposal of thaagal meeting;

profit distributions may only be made to the extté equity exceeds the paid and called up part of
the capital increased with the reserves which rmesbhaintained pursuant to the law;

Dividends shall be paid after the adoption of thendal Accounts evidencing that the payment of
dividends is lawful. The General Meeting shall, n@oproposal of the Board of Managing Directors,

which proposal must be approved by the Board ofeBuigory Directors, at least determine (i) the

method of payment in case payments are made in(dasie date and (iii) the address or addresses
on which the dividends shall be payable;

the Board of Managing Directors, with prior approehthe Supervisory Board, may resolve to pay
an interim dividend provided the requirement of #eeond paragraph has been complied with as
shown by interim accounts drawn up in accordandk thie provision of the law;

the General meeting may, subject to due observahdke provision of paragraph 2 and upon a

proposal by the Board of Managing Directors, whicbposal has been approved by the Supervisory
Board, resolve to make distributions out of a resevhich need not to be maintained by virtue of the

law;

cash payments in relation to shares if and in asafathe distributions are payable outside the
Netherlands, shall be made in the currency of tbhentty where the shares are listed and in
accordance with the applicable rules of the couirtrwhich the shares of the Company have been
admitted to an official listing on a regulated $t@xchange. If such currency is not the same as the
legal tender in the Netherlands the amount shaltddeulated against the exchange rate determined
by the Board of Managing Directors at the end @& ttay prior to the day on which the General
meeting shall resolve to make the distributionadnordance with paragraph.1 above. If and in as far
as the Company on the first day on which the distidon is payable, pursuant to governmental
measures or other extraordinary circumstances lgejtsncontrol, is not able to pay on the place
outside the Netherlands or in the relevant foreigmrency, the Board of Managing Directors is
authorised to determine to that extent that thexas shall be made in euros and on one or more
places in the Netherlands. In such case the pomgsif the first sentence of this paragraph stall n
apply.

the General meeting may, upon a proposal by thealfiag Directors, which proposal was approved
by the Supervisory Board, resolve to pay dividemdsnake distributions out of a reserve which need
not to be maintained by virtue of the law, whollypartially in the form of shares in the capitaltio
Company;

a claim of a shareholder to receive a distribugmpires after 5 years;

for the calculation of the amount of profit distition, the shares held by the Company shall be
excluded.

Proposed profit appropriation

For the year ended 31 December 2010, Managemepbges to allocate the net profit for the year 2010
amounting to PLN 35,091 thousand to retained egmirmhis proposal has been reflected in the
Company'’s Statement of Financial Position per 3tdbaber 2010.

Subsequent events — other information
Refer to note 38 of the consolidated financialestagnts (page 88).

Auditor’s report
The auditor’s report is set up on pages 34 and 35.
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